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STRATEGIC REPORT

The Directars present their Strategic Report on the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
Principal activities

The Group s principal activities are property investment, development and fund management

The subsidiary and associated undertakings principally affecting the profits or net assets of the Group in the year are listed in notes 22 and 23 to the
financial statements

Our strategic priorities

The Group has three objectives

—  todelver attractive fong-term returns,

-~ todevelop and co-ordinate an internattonally diversified property group, and

— to uphold Grosvenor’s reputation for quality, integrity and social responsibility

More detail on how the Group sets out to achueve its objectives can be found in the Annual Review available at www grasvenor com

Business review

Group performance

2013 realised a record revenue profit of £175 1m (2012 restated £84 5m), the third consecutive year that a record has been set Profit before tax
Increased 38% to £506 9m (2012 restated £367 8m) and total return, which reflects the impact of revaluations and exchange movements, was 9 79
(2012 7 2%)

Operating company performance

Grosvenor Britain & Ireland trebled 1ts revenue profit to £117 5m {2012 restated £35 2m), due to sigaificant development profits, ansing from the
decision to take advantage of current prime residential pricing. in light of the one-off nature of much of this trading profit, expectations for 2014 should
be based more on the trend established up to 2012 Grosvenor America’s revenue profit increased 76% to £23 7m (2032 €13 5), aiso due to higher
residential development profits Grosvenor Asia Pacfic's revenue profit dechined 54% to £4 5m (2012 £9 8m) due to lower trading profits from jont
ventures

Grosvenor Fund Management expernenced a loss of €14 9m (2012 £10 3m loss), principally ansing from lower fees due to the natural termination of
funds coupled with restructunng costs in Asia and office closure costs fallowing Grosvenor's decision to sell the remaining legacy Australian assets

Indirect investment s revenue profit increased 24% to £60 9m {2012 £49 Om} Within that, Grosvenor's share of Sonae Sierra’s revenue profit
Increased 30% to £48 5m (2012 £37 4m) due to lower impairments against development projects Revenue profit from investments managed by
Grosvenor Fund Management increased by 5% to £12 4m (2012 £11 6m), with lower investments in funds being more than offset by improved
performance in legacy assets

Total returns

For the fourth consecutive year, Grosvenor Britain & Ireland delivered the highest total return amongst our operating companies, at 16 5% (2012

13 89%), reflecting both the increased revenue profit and positive revaluations of the London estate Grasvenor Americas total return was its highest for
SIX years, at 10 5% (2012 9 5%), due to increased revenue profit, and Grosvenor Asia’s was 5 4% (2012 8 79%) reflecting reduced resrdential
development profits and revaluations

The totat return from indirect investments increased to 3 6% (2012 1 5%), cOMPrising Sonae Sierra 2 9%, fund investments & 7%, legacy O 19 and new
Investments 8 1%

Financial position

The Group’s shareholders’ funds now stand at £3 5bn (2012 restated £3 2bn), thew highest ever level The growth has been driven by the record
revenue profit, together with the strong revaluation gams on the London estate Economic gearing stood at 29% and resilience was well above our
internal mirimum at 77%
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Financial capacity and liquidity

The Graup is well positioned to take advantage of opportunities as they anse The Group s financral capacity (being the spare cash and undrawn,
committed, general use facilities which are iImmediately available) stood at £ 16n at 31 December 2013, up from £0 9bn 1n 2012 The weighted average
Ife of facihities 1s 7 7 years and the Group has sufficient spare cash to repay all whally-awned facilities maturing over the next 12 years

Key performance indicators and measures of return

Grosvenor takes a long-term view sa Is less interested in year-on-year comparisons and 1s mare concerned with the overall trend in performance

The Group manitors total return on property assets and grawth in revenue profit Total return 1s calculated on a proportional basis, including the
appropriate share of jomnt ventures and associates Revenue profit 1s shown in Note 5 Total return and revenue profit are defined in the glossary

Appropriate key performance indicators are employed throughout the Group to help achieve ambitious goals and a philosophy of continuous
Improvement

Key Performance Indicator Why it Is measured 2013 w012 Comment
(restated)
Shareholders funds To report the total value of the Shareholders £3 5hn £3 3bn Shareholders funds have continued to nse and now
investment in the Group stand at their highest ever level
Revenue profit To identify uncerlying performance, excluding £175.1m £84 5m Revenue peofit has increased for the fifth successive
market movements year (o a record £175 Im but 2013 was an exceptional
year
Tetal returns {including To show how our property porttolio has pertormed, 9 7% 7 2% A strong return delivered by the Group, driven by
Currency movement) Including both inceme and capatal refurns outperformance 1n Grosvenor Britain & irefand and
Grasvenor Americas
Assets under management To menitor the scale of the portfalio of property £11 8bn Fi2 2bn Increased assets under management in the proprietary
assets far which the Graup s management teams operating comparies were offset by a reducticn within
are responsitle for Grosvenor Fund Management
Property assets To quantify the Group s finangial investment in £5.8bn £5 8bn Property assets have remained stable with valuation
property assets gains being offset by disposals and currency
movements arising from the relative strengthening of
Sterling
Development exposure To indicate the level of committed development 12 4% 16 7% We sald £250m of development and trading property
activity expressed as a proportion of total property i the year to fund future development, but have yet to
commitments commit to new developments in our Increased

development prpeline

Risks and uncertamties

The Group aims to develop and co-ordinate an internationally diversified group of property companies and investments in property comparies or ather
property ventures Each Operating Company endeavours to maximise its returns in accordance with an agreed stance on risk The Group seeks to
ensure that the risks encountered by the business are identified, quantified, understood and managed in an appropriate way

The Group s operations are managed under a devolved structure However, since the activities of property investment, development and fund
management are common to each region, the nature of business risks encountered in each region 1s braadly similar Set out below is a summary and
explanation of the principal nsks faced by the business

Market risk

Property markets are cychcal, so the Group s bustnesses will always be subject to vanations in the value of the portfolio Taking a long-term view, the
Group s focus is less on short-term value fluctuations and more on underlying value-generating potential

Exposure to market risk 15 mitigated through a balanced aliocation of capital to different geographic markets, currencies and property sectors, which 15
explained in more detall under asset allocation below
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Short-term market risk 1s more relevant in development activity, where market conditions may affect leasing terms and capitalisation rates The Group
commits to develapment projects anly after taking carefud account of the market outlook Development exposures are frequently reduced by working in
joint ventures

The Group s able to make use of property defivatives where markets permit as a further mechanism for managing exposure to market risk
Capital allocation

The Group's primary financial ohjective 1S to maximise returns at acceptable levels of nisk Fundamental to this is the optimal allacation of capital
invested hetween each of the Operating Companies and indirect investments and the devalution of property decision-making authonty to local boards

The allocation of capital invested in operating companies and indirect investments 1s based on five-year return projections with a three-yearly review
Long-term (five+ years) macro-economic and property market projections, a review of Operating Company historic performance, consideration of wider
rssues such as climate change and the use of portfolio theory simulations are alf part of the capital allocation research process From this, the Holding
Company determines a long-term range far the level of capital to be allocated te each Operating Company and indirect investments over the long term
Medium-term (two-five-year) targets are generally around the centre of the long-term ranges Actual allpcations are made conststent with medism-
term targets and long-term ranges, but also in response to short-term (zero-two year) tactical and opportunistic considerations The Group retains the
financial capacity for unplanned oppeortunities that may arise

Long-term ranges for capital invested allocated to Operating Companies and indirect investments, together with actual allocations at 31 December
2013, were as follows

Percentage of Capital Invested

Long-term Medium-term At 21 December
" T i
united Kingdom 40-55 48 60
North America 10-25 23 16
Europe g-10 10 12
Asia Pacific 10-20 12 1C
Latin America 0-10 5
Africa 0-5

Percentage of Capital Invested

Medium term At 3] December
targat 2013
* %
|
Proprietary 73 78
Indirect 27 22

At the Operating Company and indirect investments level, each beard (the Group Investment Committee in the case of indirect investments) reviews its
strategy annually This review takes account of the geographic allocation in the region as well as the allocation between sectors and the sphit between
investment and development

The Group Board reviews the five-year ftnancial performance, five-year strategic plans and current operational matters of each of the Operating
Companies and indirect investments annually
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The current distribution of the Group’s property assets and assets under management 1s shown below

Grosvenor property interests

GROSVENCR THIRD PARTY Future
Financial development Assuts under
Year ended 31 Decembes 2013 Inveslm;mnl thelcpm;mm ass;: Inilranl Invesn'n;mm Develoam;mﬂ To;ll corr‘rmtm;rr:.lt namgem::lnt
Great 8nitain & Ireland 2,497 296 - 2,793 1560 159 1,119 482 4,994
Grosvenor Americas 698 95 15 809 613 37 650 19 1,478
Sonae Sterra 1,163 44 - 1,207 - - - - 1,207
Indirect investmenis - 1§ 2 17 - - - - 17
Grosvenor Asla 458 53 - 511 72 257 329 - 840
Grosvenor Fund Management 485 - 17 502 2712 - 272 - 3214
TOTAL 5301 504 34 5,839 4,957 453 5,410 501 11,750
Commercial 1,627 77 - 1,704 1,198 - 1,198 41 2,943
Retail 2,235 59 8 2,302 2,613 10 2,623 1 4,936
Residential 1345 291 14 1650 1039 443 1482 443 3,575
Industnal 80 20 - 85 - - - 6 106
Hotel 10 57 - 67 30 - 30 - 97
Other 4 - 12 31 77 - 77 - 93
TOTAL 5.301 504 34 5839 4957 453 5410 501 11,750
Property risks
Investment properties

The principal nsk in property mvestment is the Joss of income The Group ensures that properties are properly maintained and managed, occupancy is
maximised and exposure to individual tenants 1s managed Asset management 1s undertaken by teams with overall respansibility for the properties
within therr portfolios Day-to-day property management 1s either autsourced to professional property managers or managed in-house

Leasing risk 1s managed by dedrcated in-house easing teams and the use of professional leasing agents Exposure to individual tenants or sector
groups Is reduced by matntaining a diversified tenant base and by reviewing the credit-worthiness of new tenants

Developments

In property development, the main nisks anse 11 managing the development cycle, including obtaining appropniate planning consents and controlling
the construction process and costs The Group has dedicated teams invelved In site assembly and ptanning, and hmits committed expenditure prior to
planning cansent being abtatned Canstruction risk 1s managed by in-house project management teams using external contractors In many cases

constructicn risk 1s shared with partners
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Capital raising

The Group currently has no plans to seek further equity capital through the issue of new shares Capital for investment 1s avariable from retained
earnings

The Group s preference for working with partners and fund management investors provides access ta capital, beyend its own resources, for specific
investment and development opportunities Working with ike-minded investors in property 1s a core part of the Group s business.

Acquisitions and sales

Wwhen acquiring or selling property, the principal risk 1s in assessing the future income flows in order to determine an appropriate price The timing of
property transactions 1s managed as part of the annual asset allocation review within each Operating Company Estimated price levels are supported by
detailed financial appraisals, which are conducted for all property purchase and sale transactions Where deals occur within joint ventures or funds,
they require the approvai of an mvestment committee that 1s independent from the asset management team Every property transaction 15 Subject to a
due diligence review, including corporate due diligence where properties are acquired within corporate vehicles

Financial and tax risks

The principal financal risks faced by the Group are liquidity, credit, interest rate and foreign currency risk Each of these risks 1s explained in more
detail and analysed in Note 31 to the Accounts

Expesure to tax nisk arises across a large number of tax jurisdictions In addition te different tax filing requirements in each terrrtory, there 1s alsg
exposure o the impact of future changes in tax legistation These risks are reviewed annually as stipulated by the Group s long established tax palicy
and are managed by an in-house team which works alongside external tax advisers

Health and safety
The Group 15 committed to achieving high standards of health and safety throughout the business and aspires to best practice

Overall Group Board accountability for heaith and safety Is taken by the Group Finance Director Each Operating Company board 1s responsible for
health and safety within its business with the support of the internal Health and Safety Director and external consultants with local expertise ta help
them achieve compliance

One of the Group’s objectives Is to ensure that employees throughout the Group are well mformed and consulted on matters regarding heaith and
safety, which Is treated as a key part of the wider nsk maragement process We continue ta review and improve our reporting of performance
information and we have a health and safety IT management system ta assist the Operating Cormpanies

Each operating company reviews and reports formally 1ts comphance each year and progress 1s monitored on a regular basis

All acaidents and cases of 1l health are treated seriously, investigated, lessons identified and necessary action taken to prevent recurrences The
number of reportable moidents to statutory authenties for our employees remained low 1n 2013, with two incidents to our employees Each business
made good progress in completing 1ts annual health and safety action plan

One Operating Company, Grosvenor Britain & (reland, received one enforcement notice in 2013 relating to fire deficiencies on a property on the London
Estate This was thoroughly investigated and remedied

Each bustness sets itself annual targets in arder to achieve thewr Board cbjectives and follow the OHSAS18001 international standard These include
verifying that workplace and other nisks are bemng controlled and mitigated where necessary
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Environment
At a Group level, capital allocation considerattons include gur research results on long-term unsustainable social and environmental trends
Each Operating Company has formally embedded social and environmental sustainabiity inta ther five or ten year business strategies

Each Operating Company 15 responsible far ensuning comphance to environmental legislation and reposts annually to Group as part of our Grosvenor
Group Limited Compact and Operating Requirements

As part of these requirements, we menitor, benchmark and actively improve the energy, water and waste performance of our directly managed
buildings to reduce the risk of obsolescence, utthty price fluctuations and increasing legislation

Reputation and brand

The professional reputation of the individuals and businesses within the Group Is an important intangible asset, as s the Grosvenor brand The Group
seeks to manage these assets by investing appropriately in them, and by identifying potential reputational or brand risks and acting swiftly to mitigate
those risks All staff are briefed on the definition of the Group's brand and are advised on how to align communications and behaviour with it, and
cetaled brand management guidelines are provided for relevant tn-house and consultancy teams

People

The Groep takes considerable care in recruiting, retaining and developing Grosvenaor pecple A graduate qualifying programme in the UK, a European
RICS graduate qualifying programme and a range of development opportunities exist Succession planning is overseen by remuneration committees

Compensation s regularly berchmarked against the market and the Group rewards loyalty, excellence and effort
Informatian technology

The Group’s operations are dependent on the effectiveness of iT systems, including an international communications network, property databases,
accounting and treasury systems Procedures are in place to protect the security and integrity of data, and the Group has detailed incident
management and business continuity plans which are tested on a regular basis The Business Process Group continues to ensure that the Group
benefits from the efficient delivery of Group-wide process and system changes

Employees

The Group gwves full and fair consideration to apphications by disabled persons for employment Disabled emplayees and those who become disabled
are afforded the same training, career development and promotion opportunities as other staff The Directors recognise the importance of good
communications and relations with the Group's employees and places considerable value on informing them on matters affecting them as employees
Each part of the Group maintains employee relations appropnate to its own particular needs and environment

Judith Ball
Company Secretary

UK Company registration number 3219943
Registered Office

70 Grosvenor Street

London WIK 3JP

27 March 2014
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Corporate governance

Grosvenor's business approach Is based on openness and high levels of accountability, and the Board's apgroach te corporate governance 1s to
establish clear policies and procedures as they consider appropriate for a privately-owned Group with its Sharehciders represented on the Board

Board of Directors

The Board comprises

—  Lesley Knox (Chairman)
- Michael McLintock

—  Jeremy Newsum

—  Mark Preston

—  Nicholas Scarles

—  Domenico Siniscalco

- leffrey Weingarten

Structure of the Board

The compositton of the Board is designed to ensure effective management and contrat of the Group, taking account of the devolved operating structure
and ensuring that the Shareholders’ interests are properly represented It consists of the Group Chief Executive and Group Finance Director and five
Non-Executive Directors (including the Chairman) The Non-Executive Directars include three who represent the Shareholders {as Trustees af the
Grosvenor Trusts) and two who are independent The Non-Executive Directors demonstrate a range of experienice and professional background that
enables them to make a valuable contribution 10 the Group and to provide independent judgement and challenge to the Board

Biographies of the members of the Board, with their sub-committee memberships, are available at www Erasvenor com
Board effectiveness

The Board is responsible for setting and monitoring Group strategy, reviewing performance, ensuring adequate funding, formulating policy on key
1ssues and reporting to the Shareholders

The rofes of Chairman and Chief Executive are clearly defined The Chairman is primarily responsible for overseeng the working of the 8oard The Chief
Executive I1s responsible for the implementation of the strategy and policies set by the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group

To enable the Board to discharge its duties, all Directors receive appropriate and timely information, including briefing papers distributed tn advance of
Board meetings The Directors have access to the Company Secretary and may, at the Company’s expense, take independent professional advice and
recewve additional training as they see fit All new Directors participate n an induction training programme

The Board undertakes a regular evaluation of its own performance The last review was in March 2013

The Board encourages the appointment of Executive Directors to appropriate external posts as this increases their breadth of knowledge and
experience Earnings from all such appomtments are returned to the Group

The Board held five meetings during the year, with full attendance by each Director at every meeting
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Committees of the Board

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises

—  Michael Mclintack {Chairman)
= Lesley Knox

—  Domenico Siniscalco

The Audit Committee i1s responsible for reviewing a wide range of financral matters, including the Annual Financial Statements and accompanying
reports, Group internal and external audit arrangements, accounting pohicies, internal controls and the actions and procedures involved in the
management of nsk throughout the Group The Audit Committee reviews annually the scape of the external auditor s work and fees It also considers
the auditor's independence which 15 ensured through a variety of procedures including regular rotation of audit partners Any nan-audit fees received
by the auditor in excess of 50% of the audit fee are pre-approved by the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meets at least three times a year with the auditor and is attended by invitation by the Group Chief Executive, Group Finance
Director and other senior persennel as appropriate The Audit Committee met three times during the year, with full attendance at each meeting except
in December 2013 when gne member was absent

The Britain & ireland, Americas, Asia Pacific and Grosvenor Fund Management Operating Compames each have their awn audit committees, which meet
at least twice a year The key decisions of these audit committees are reported to the Group Audit Committee
Nominations Committee

The Norminattons Committee comprises alf of the Non-Executive Drirectors The Committee meets when necessary and is attended, by invitation, by the
Group Chief Executive and other senior personnel as appropriate It i1s responsible for reviewing the structure of the Board, giving consideration to
succession plannming and for making recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes It I1s also responsible for identifying and nominating,
for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when they arise

Remuneration Committee
The Group Remuneratign Committee comprises

- Jeremy Newsum (Chairman)

- Michael McLintock

- leffrey Weingarten

A description of the Remuneration Committee s responsibilities 15 included 1n the Remuneration report on page 10

Group Executive Committee

The Group Executive Committee comprises
- Mark Preston (Chairman)

—  Andrew Bibby

- Nicholas Loup

- lames Raynor

—  Nicholas Scarles

—  Peter Vernon

The Group Executive Committee meets three times a year and 15 responsible for co-ordinating the implementation of Group Strategy Biographies of
the members of the Group Executive Committee are avallable at www grosvenor com
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internal control

The Board 15 respensible for the Group's system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness This 1s designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, the nisk of not achieving business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against matental misstatement or
loss

The Board cansiders that there 1s a continuous process for identifying, evaluating and managing sigrificant risks faced by the Group in the course of its
business, which has been n place throughout the year and up to the date of approval of the Annual Financial Statements This process Is regularly
reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board

A key part of the system of internal control s the deiegation of management responsibitity for the Group's property investment, devetopment and fund
management activities, together with supporting functions, to Operating Company managenent teams. The Group s Proprietary Operating Companies
have local boards, with independent Non-Executive Directors, which oversee the Operating Companies’ operattions These boards form an integral part
of the overall internal control process The relationship between Operating Company boards and the Group Board is clearly defined and 1s set out in
formally approved documents The membership of each Operating Company board 1s available at www grosvenor com

Each Operating Company and the Holding Company has management structures in place to enable effective decision-making, supported by
documented procedures and a regular review of financial perfermance, including comparisons against budget and forecasts Risk management s a
regular agenda item for all parts of the business with the emphasis on continuous improvement Each Operating Company board undertakes a reguiar
assessment of Its exposure to financial, operational and strategic nisks and the measures that have been put in place to manage those risks Significant
nsks anising from Operating Company assessments are monitored by the Group Board

in addition to local boards, each Operating Company, together with the Holding Company, Is represented on the Group Finance Board, which meets at
least twice each year and prowides a forum for debating 1ssues of a financial nature that are relevant to the Group as a whole, including Group financial
policy and risk management

The Group operates a ‘co-sourced approach to internal audit, working jointly with PricewaterhouseCoopers Each Operating Company audit committee
approves an internal audit plan, which 1s executed by PricewaterhouseCoopers, but supplemented by Grasvenar employees on occasion and where
appropriate The Operating Company audit committees review the findings from the internal audit reparts tagether with management plans to address
any weaknesses i internal contret The Group Audit Committee has an aversight role, which nvolves reviewing the Operating Company and Halding
Company internal audit plans, summaries of internal audit activity throughout the Group and significant findings of indiidual reviews

The Group Audit Committee's consideratton of internal control was reported to the Board in January 2014
Relations with Shareholders and lenders
All the principal Sharehalders are represented on the Board and all Shareholders receive a monthly report The Annual Review Is widely distributed and

the Annual Financial Statements are available on the website and the Group’s policy 15 to maintain close contact during each financiat year with
bondholders and other lenders at Group and Operating Company levels
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Report on employment and remuneration matters specifically relating to Executive Directors and senior staff

Consistent with the delegation of management responsibility to Operating Company boards, the Britain & ireland, Americas and Asia Pacific regions and
the Grosvenor Fund Management business have thetr own remuneration committees with appropriate respansibitity for remuneration matters within
those Operatting Companies The Group Remuneration Committee takes an independent overview of the various Operating Companies remuneration
and HR policies and practices, providing Group-wtde guidelines and frameworks

During the year, the Group Remuneration Committee comprised three members leremy Newsum {Chairman), Alasdar Morrison {(up unttl 3¢
Septernber 2013), Jeffrey Wemngarten (from 1 October 2013} and Michael Mclintock The Group Chief Executive and Group Human Resources Director
are invited to attend meetings, unless their own remuneration 15 being discussed The Remuneration Committee met two times during the year, with
full attendance at both of the meetings

The Committee 1s directly responsible for the remuneration and contracts of Directors and senior staff tn the Holding Company The Committee has |
access to external independent professianal advisers as necessary and receves advice on market pay levels and the design of bonus schemes I

The Group's remuneration policies recognise the importance of attracting, retaimng and motivating executives of the appropriate calibre and
experience to enhance the performance and reputation of the Group The size, complexity and mternational activity of the Group, as well as the long-
term nature of the business, are all important factors The palicy 15 to prowide competitive pay, benefits and incentive opportumities as appropriate
within local markets

The remuneration of Executive Directors and senior staff includes a blend of fixed salary and bonus opportunities designed to provide an alignment of
interests between employees and Shareholders The elements are

- Basic salary and benefits Salanes are reviewed annually, or on promotion

- Bonus schemes are designed to hink total pay to both indwidual and company performance Bonuses relating 10 company performance are
determined by achievement compared with the cost of capital, revenue profit and other business performance indicators The incentive
arrangements are designed to reward out-performance, linked to the achievement of team and individual performance targets Long-term awards
measure performance over a three-year pericd, but vest over periods of up to five years The Remuneration Committee has discretton to award
Individual bonuses in recogmition of special performance

- Penstons and life assurance for Executive Directors and senor staff in the UK are provided through membership of the Grosvenor Penston Plan
(GPP) and, if applicable, supplementary arrangements

- Qutside the UK, pensions are provided from schemes in Canada {now closed to new participants) and the USA {frozen) Further details of the
Group's pension schemes are given in Note 12 to the Accounis

A schedule of Directors remuneration, including afl amounts required to be disclosed by the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2013, 15
approved by the Shareholders and details of Directors’ remuneration in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 are set out in Note 13 to the
Accounts Representatwves of the Shareholders participate directly in setting Directors’ remyneration

The naotice pertod for the termination of the employment of an Executive Durector is six months

Non-Executive Directors representing the Shareholders, with the exception of the Chairman, recewved no fee from the Company The fees for ather Non-
Executive Directors are reviewed every two years by the Sharehotders Non-Executive Directors do not have service contracts and do not participate in
bonus arrangements in relatian to those rotes

Transactions between the Group and the Shareholders are disclosed m Note 40 to the accounts Certain Company Directors are Trustees of Grosvenor
Trusts, Trustees of the Grosvenor Pension Plan and also Directors of other companies with which the Group may from time te time enter into
transactions on normal commercial terms In the optnion of the Board, none of these relationships is such as to impair the independence of the
Directors

Jeremy Newsum
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

13 March 2014
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The Qirectors present the Group s audited consolidated financial statements fof the year ended 31 December 2013

Directors’ report disclosures

Details of principal activities, results and key performance indicators, exposure to market risk, capital allocation risk and property risks are included In
the Strategic report Detarls of the financial risk management objectives and policies including use of financial instruments are disctosed in Note 31 to
the accounts

Directors
The Directars of the Company during the penod were Lesley Knox, Michael McLintock, Alasdair Morrison, leremy Newsum, Domenico Siniscalco, Owen
Thomas, Jeffrey Weingarten, Mark Preston and Nicholas Scarles All Directors served throughout the year except for leffrey Weingarten who was

appointed on 18 June 2013, Owen Thormas who resigned 31 March 2013, Rod Kent who resigned on 30 fune 2013 and Alasdair Mornison who resigned en
30 September 2013

Directors’ interests in securities

The interests of the Directors whe served during the year in the share and loan capital of Gresvenor Group Limited are shown below

Non voting
Ordinary shares ordinary shares A" Preference shares ‘D" Preference shares
At At At At AL L At At
1 January 31 December 1January 3t December I lanuary 31 December 1 lanuary 11 December
2013 2013 2013 w13 2013 2013 013 2013
Non-beneficial
Lesley M S Knox 1,640 580 1,640,580 13,124 639 13,124,639 1,640,580 1,640,580 13156,560 6,230,478
Michael McLinfock 5453726 5,453,726 43629 809 43,629,809 5,453,726 5,453,726 43,735,915 20,711,777
Jeremy H M Newsum 4,250 433 4,290,433 34,323 463 34,323,463 4,250,433 4,290,433 34 406,940 16,293,902

The non-beneficial interests above represent the shares owned by the respective Directors in their capacity as Trustees of the Grosvenor Trusts
Where a Director has & jomnt interest in Securities, the above disclosures include, for each Director, the number of secunities that are jointly held

Except as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company who served duning the year had any interests in the securities of the Company or any
of Its subsidizry undertakings

Directors’ indemnity

The Company has made qualifying third-party tndemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors which were made during the year and remain n force
at the date of this report

Dwvidends

Dividends paid during the year amounted to £ml (2012 &mil)
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Financial services activities

Grosvenor lnvestment Management Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary, 1s authonsed and regulated in the UK by the Financial Conduct Authority for
the purposes of undertaking regulated activities

Grosvenor Fund Management inc , a wholly-owned subsidiary, 1s a registered investment adviser in the USA pursuant to the investment Advisers Act of
1940, for the purposes of providing real estate related investment advice

Grosvenor Fund Management fapan Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary, provides financial services and products under 1ts Kanto Local Finance Bureau
{Kinsyo) License No 1956 1ssued by The Financial Services Agency, the Japanese Government and real estate investment advice as awthorised under 1ts
Discretionary Real Estate Investment Advisory Business, License No Sogo 63 (ssued by the Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism [t 15
also authorised to transact real estate business under its Real Estate Transaction Business License No Takyo Governor (2) 87514 1ssued by the Tokyo
Metropohitan Government

Going concern

The Graup's business activities, together with the factors hikely to affect its future development, performance and financial position, ang the principal
nsks and uncertainties faced by the Group are set out i the Strategic report an pages 1to 6 In addition Note 31 to the financial statements includes an
explanation of the Group s pelicies and processes for managing its financial and capital nsks, details of its financial instruments and the exposure to
interest rates, credit and hguidity risk

£ach Operating Company and the Group, as part of 1ts regular evaluation of iquidity nisk, models the principal risks and uncertainties in its cash flow
projections for the foreseeable future, including an assessment of comphance with banking covenants and the implications of any facibties that are due
to expire in the next 12 months

Based on the Operating Company and Group cash flow projections, the Group s satisfied that it has sufficient headroom from its cash balances and
committed borrowing facilities to support the funding requirements of those projections

Therefore, after making appropriate enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources
to continue 1n business for the foreseeable future Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Charitable and political donations

Each of the Grosvenor Operating Companies contributes a percentage of its equity to chanity each year Grosvenor Britain & Ireland, Grosvenar Asia
Patific and Grosvenor Fund Management channel thewr giving via the Westminster Foundatian which 1s a grant-making foundation representing the
charitable interests of the Duke of Westrminster, the Grosvenor famity and the Grosvenor Estate, including Grosvenor Group Limited In 2013, Grosvenar
Group Limited s charitable contributions amounted to £2 4m (2012 £2 1m) of which £1 9m (2012 £1 7m) was donated via the Westminster Foundation

Each of the proprietary Operating Companies has a staff charity committee and these have a dual role first, to recommend to the Westminster
Foundation Trustees thase chanties in their local communities that they wish to receive support and second. to help organise staff fu nd-raising
activities, volunteering and pro-bono support to charities selected by employees Westminster Foundation matches the fund-raising efforts of mdvidual
members of staff for registered charities of their own choosing up te £1,000 per member of staff in any given year and in 2013 the total figure given by
westminster Foundatton in this way was £28,590 in addition, Grasvenor supports Give As You Earn up to £1,200 for UK based employees and in 2013
this amounted to just over £41,000

2013 was the first full year of aperating under the new Westrinster Foundation funding guidelinies which focus on youth homelessness and supporting
communities, and in the UK, fall within geographical boundaries related to the activities of the Grosvenor Estate and Grosvenor Britain & ireland Major
grants awarded included youth homelessness Cardinal Hume Centre, The Bridge Foyer, Forum Housing Association, Highlangds Small Communities
Housing Trust, Zaccheus 2000 Trust and CRISIS and supporting communities Samantans {(Chester and Westminster), St Vincent s Family Project,
Westminster Crtizens Advice Bureau, St Margaret s Drop sn Centre, Bren Project, Age UK (Chester), Contact the Elderly, Debt Advice Network (Cheshire)
and it France Habitat et Humanisme, Mecenat Chirurgie Cardiaque, Apprentis D Auteull, in Spain Fundacion Rats, in Japan Shine Ont Kids (formerly
the Tyler Foundation), in the USA the Children’s Hospital of Philadelphia and in Hong Kong Hong Kong Spinal Cord Injury

In South Belgravia, a pertfolio of approximately 20,000 sq ft of office space accommaodates over 30 charittes in small office units This portfolio IS
managed by Grosvenor Britain & freland and each chanty receives a contribution, typically ameunting ta 509 of its rent, from westminster Foundatton
tewards its rent and this is funded by the Group, 1n 2013 this totalled £0 3m These charities tell us that they find the central location very helpful and
therr presence i the portfclic enables us to develop constructive longer term relationships with them

Na pelitical donations were made during the year (2012 £ril)
Auditor

Deloitte LLP has been appointed as auditor under the provisions of section 487 of the Companies Act 2006
Each person who 1s a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that
a) In so far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the auditor 1s unaware, and

b) the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit mformation and to establish
that the Company's auditor 1s aware of that information

This information 1s grven and should be interpreted in accordance with section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Jud:ith gall
Company Secretary

UK Company registration number 3219943
Registered Office

70 Grosvenor Street

London WK 3JpP

27 March 2014
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with apphicable laws and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare finanoial statements for each financial year The Directors have elected to prepare the Group financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under company law the
Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
profit or loss of the Company for that period In preparing these financial statements, Internatianal Accounting Standards require that the Directors

- properly select and apply accounting policies,
- present infgrmatton, including accounting pohicies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information,

—  provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand the impact
of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance, and

- make an assessment of the Company s ability to continue as a going concern

The Directors are respansible for keeping adequate accounting recards that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enabfe them to ensure that the financial statements camply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible far safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other rregularities

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and mtegnty of the corporate and financiat information inciuded on the Cempany’s website
Legislation n the United Kingdom gaverning the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislatien in other
Junisdictions

Responsibility statement

we confirm that to the best of our knowledge

1 the financial statements, prepared 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilittes, financtal position and prafit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included 1n the consolidation taken asa
whole, and

2 the management report, which I1s incorporated into the Directars report, includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the Company and the undertakings included i the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that they face

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2014 and i1s signed on its behalf by

Lesley Knox
Chairman
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CORPORATE ADVISERS AND BANKERS

Auditor: Deloitte LLP

Tax advisers: KPMG LLP

Principal valvers: DTZ, Cushman & Wakefield, lones Lang LaSalle
Solicitors: Boodle Hatfield LLP, Slaughter and May

Lead bankers: The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc

Actuaries: Lane Clark & Peacock LLP
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
to the members of Grosvenor Group Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Grasvenar Group Limited (the Group ) for the year ended 31 December 2013 which comprise the
canselidated income staiement, the consaolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the
consclidated and parent company balance sheets, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the related Notes I to 40 The financial reporting
framework that has been apphed in their preparation is applicable law and international Financial Reporting Standards (iFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and, as regards the parent company financal statements, as applied 1n accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are requrred to state to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respansibtlity to anyone other than the Company and the
Company s members as a body, for our audit work, for thus repart, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors responsthiiities, the Directors are responsible for the preparat:on of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibibity 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and treland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves abtaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Group’s and the parent company's arcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of sigmficant accouniing estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read
alt the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information that is apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us 1n the course of
performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opimon on financial statements
In our cpinion

— the financial statements give a true and far view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of
the Group’s profrt for the year then ended,

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Umion,

—  the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Untion and as applied
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

— the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opmmion the information given mn the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the fallowtng matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to repert to you if, tn our OpInton

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for gur audit have not been recewved from branches
not visited by us, or

— the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with tie accounting records and returns, or
- certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

odn .

Mark §oodey
(Semovstatutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

27 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

far the year ended 31 December 2013

Nates mﬁ e (75!3[22

Total revenue 6 515 4 2655

Gross rental iIncome 7 124.7 1342

Property outgoings 8 (46 1) (514)
Net rental income 78.6 828

Other ticame 9 33.6 387

Administrative expenses 10 {98 6) 910)
Net gains/('osses) on trading properties 14 879 137
Net {losses)/gains on other investments 15 17.72) 0%

Net gawns on revalvation and sale of investment property 16 3547 3290

impairment ¢f goodwrl 25 (4 4) -

Share of profit from jomt ventures and associates 23 1032 585

Gain from gperations including share of joint ventures and associates 5373 405 2

Financial income 17 58 60

FINancial expenses 17 (42 7%) (44 5}
Fair value adjustments 17 63 15

Net financing costs 17 (30.4) (374)
Profit before tax 5069 3678

Current tax expense 18 (55 8) {17 8)
Deferred tax expense 18 (12 6) (2% 1)
Profit for the year 38 4385 3209

Attributable to:

Equity halders of the parent 38 437.6 3254

Non-controlling interests 38 09 (4 5)
Profit for the year 38 4385 3209

See Note 2 for detalls of the 2012 restatement

Revenye profit s shawn . Note 5.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012 (restated)
Notes £m i
Profit for the year 38 4385 3209
QOther comprehensive income which may be reclassified to profit or toss in subsequent pericds
Revaluatton of property plant and equipment 38 47 36
Avallable for sale financial assets
Losses arising during the period - Group 38 - {1 8)
Fair value adjustments on swaps
Gains arnsing dunng the period - Group 38 6.6 17
Gains arsing during the penod - joint ventures and asseciates 38 10 34
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 38 {64 8) (48 3)
Tax relating to gains on fair value adjustments and revaluations 38 a3y (11
Other comprehensive expense, net of tax, which may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods (53 8) (62 5)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent penods
Avallable tor sale financial assets
Losses arising dunng the periad - Group 38 190 -
Actuanial gains on defined benefit pensron schemes 38 109 4B
Tax relating to actuarial gains 38 (3.9) (15
Other comprehensive income, net of tax, not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periads 260 33
Total comprehensive income for the penod 410.7 2617
Attributable to
Equty holders of the parent 4118 27137
Non centrelleng interests 1.1 (120}
4107 2617

The Company's equity Increased during the year as a result of dividends recewved from subsidiaries of £25 1m (20t2 £mil), there was no impact on
equity as a result of dividends paid to Sharehaolders (2012 £nil)

See Note 2 for details of the 2012 restatement
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2013

AlUibutable 10 eguity ho'ders of (he parent

c?.;.'n'atl ur:srmill-': Irar::lsaet:_:: regel?:; Fair value reserve Revaluation reserve Retained earmings Non m.ln'&':'e"f: J:I;”y
£Em £m £m tm £m m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2011 1649 283 3866 039 (14 0) 97 19699 2,6493 1266 2,7759
Changes in equity for 2011
Profit for the year - - - - - - 250 8 2508 (49) 2459
Other comprehensive (expense)/income - - {on 07 (4 4) 30 {(116) (14 4) 52) {196)
Dividends - - - - - - - - 62 (6.2)
Non-controlling shares ssued by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 03 0.3
Non controlling shares acquired by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - (18] (16)
Redemption of preference shares {25 9) - - 259 - - (2591 (259 - {25 9)
Other movements in joint ventures - - - - - - {45} (4 5) 12 57
Prior period adjustment (Note 2) - - - - - - 1002 100.2 - 100.2
Balance at 31 December 2011 {restated) 1390 283 3859 1291 (18 4) 127 2,2789 2,955.5 1078 3,0633
Changes n equity for 2012
Profit for the year - - - - - - 3126 3126 (455 3081
QOther comprehensive (expense)/income - - (60 5} 40 (18) 33 16 {53.4) (75} (60.9)
Dividends - - - - - - 09 {05) 8 4) 29
Transfers between reserves - - (43) (04) - - 47 - -
Non-controtling shares issued by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 06 06
Nen controlling shares acquired by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 27 27
Redemption of preference shares (36 5) - - 355 - - (3650 (365) {36 5)
Other movements In joint ventures - - - - - - - - 11 11
Priar period adjustment (Note 2 Income statement) - - - - - - 128 128 - 128
Prior penod adjustment (Note 2 SOC1) - - - - - - 17 17 - 17
Balance at 31 December 2012 (restated) 1025 283 3211 166 2 20 2) 160 25733 31922 864 3,2786
Changes in equity for 2013
Profit for the year - - - - - - 4376 4376 0% 4385
Other comprehensive (expensel/income - - {61 8) 53 190 a6 71 {25 8} (200 (27.8)
Dividends - - - - - - 01 1) - 01)
Transters hetween reserves - - - - 25 - {25} - - -
Nan controlling shares acquired by subsichanes - - - - - - - - (02 {0.2)
Redemption of preference shares (24 0) - - 240 - - (240) (240} - {240)
Bonus 1ssue of shares 1251 - - - - - {125 1) - - -
pemerger of wholly-owned subsidiary (125 1) - - - - - - (125.1) - (125.0)
QOther moverments In jomnt ventures - - - - - - 03 03 07 10
Balance at 31 December 2013 788 283 29593 1585 i3 206 2,B6B6 3,455.1 858 35409

The Company's statement of changes in equity 1s presented 1n note 38(h) See Note 2 for details of the 2012 restatement
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BALANCE SHEETS
as at 31 December 2013
Group Lom pany

Notes Zﬂmu 2012 (rcstat;;l 201 (resxal;g 2(;:: 2%]_5
ASSETS
Non-current assets
lavestment property 20 3,349.0 3.054 4 28040 - -
Qther property, plant and equipment 21 54,7 486 406 - -
Investments 1 subsidiaries 22 - - - 1,358.4 1358 4
Investments 1n jomt ventures and assoclates 23 964 1 1,003 9 1,074 8 - -
Other financiat assets 24 436 529 369 - -
Intangible assets 25 - 40 41 - -
Deferred tax assets 26 58.3 674 681 - -
Total non-current assets 4,469 7 42312 40285 1,358 4 1358 4
Current assets
Trading properties 27 124.9 294 8 2452 - -
Trade and other recevables 28 1512 200 3 1617 13.9 1379
Other finangial assets 24 10.8 938 32 - -
Income tax receivahle 35 56 120 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 29 516 6 238 4 2375 - -
Total current assets 807.0 7489 659 6 139 1379
TOTAL ASSETS 5,276.7 49801 4,688 1 1,372.3 1,496 3
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and horrowngs 30 (806 5) (769 4) (776 8) - -
Trade ang other payables 32 {58.0) (72 8) (633 - -
Employee benefits 12 (23.6) (34 2) (37 2) - -
Deferred tax habilittes 26 (613.7) {600 1) (576 4) - -
Total non-current liabihities {1,50L.8) (1476 5) {14537) - -
Current liabilities
Qverdrafts 29 - - (cn - -
tnterest bearing loans and borrowings 30 {19 3) {49 5) (28 6) - -
Trade and other pavables 32 (171 2) (153 9) {123 3) - -
Income tax payable {4L.7) 177 (157 - -
Provisigns 33 (L.8) {39) {3 4) - -
Total current liabilities (234 0) (225 0) (1711) = -
TOTAL LIABILITIES {1,735.8) {1701 5) (1624 8) - -
NET ASSETS 3,540 9 32786 30633 1,372.3 1,496 3
Equity
Share capital 37 785 1025 1390 785 1025
Share premium 38 28.3 283 283 28.3 283
Reserves 38 479.7 4861 509 3 11259 1,227 0
Retained earnings 38 2,868 6 2,575 3 2,278 9 139 6 1385
Shareholders' funds 38 3,4551 3,1922 2,955 5 1,372.3 1,496 3
Non controlling interests 38 85.8 864 107 8 - -
TOTAL EQUITY 38 3,540.9 32786 30633 1,372.3 1,496 3

See Note 2 for detalls of the 2012 restatement

Approved by the Board and authonised for 1ssue on 27 March 2014 and signed on beha!f of the Boarg

Lesley Knox Nicholas Scarles

(Chairman)
Company registration number 3219943

/\]M Scarte,

(Group Finance Director)



2 Grosvenor Group Limited
]_ Financial Statements for the year ending
31 December 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012

Notes £m &
Qperating activities
Operating profit before changes 1n working capital and provisions 39%(a) 1029 196
Decrease/lincrease) in trade and other recewvables 297 (23 3)
Decrease/{increase) in trading properties 188.0 (49 Q)
Increase in trade and other payables 39.7 550
Decrease/{increase} In employee benefits 01 (02)
{Decrease)/increase In provisions (2.1) 0s
Cash tiow from operations 3583 26
Interest paid {54 0) (505)
Corporate Income taxes paid (36.5) (18 4)
Interest receved 6.7 58
Ket cash flow from/{used in) operations 274.5 (60 5)
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investing activities a44 2 11 B
Acquisition of investment property {367.8) (38 2)
Deveigpment of investment and development property {69.3) (382)
Proceeds from sale of other property, plant and equipment - 08
actouisition of other plant, property and equipment a7 75)
Proceeds from sale of other financial assets 7.2 29
Acguisiion of other financial assets - mn
Net cash flow from joint ventures and associates 254 39
Proceeds from sale of joint ventures and associates 157 5 96 4
Acquisition of joint ventures and asscclates {54 0} (60 2)
Net cash flow from investing activities 138.5 880
Financing activities
Proceeds from additional borrowings 473 B82S
Repayment of borrowings {150 2) (56 2)
Non controlhng shares 1ssued by subsidianies - 411
Non centroiling shares acquired by subsidiartes (0.2) (27)
Redemption of preference shares in the Company {24 0) (365)
Dividends paid by subsidiaries 01 (89)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (127.2) (212)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 285.8 63
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 238 4 2375
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on cash held (7 6) {5 4)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 516.6 2384

The Company had no cash or cash equivalents during the current and prior year and accordingly no cash flow 1s presented
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union These are those international Accounting Standards, Internatronal
Financial Reporting Standards and related Interpretations (SIC-IFRIC
interpretations), subsequent amendments to those standards and related
interpretations issued or adopted by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) that have been adopted by the Eurgpean unton

The Accounts have been prepared an the going concern basis as
described in the going concern section of the Directors’ report on page 12
The principal accounting pohcies adopted are set out below The Company
has elected under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to include
its own income statement in these financial statements

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group Incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings

Subsidiary undertakings are those entities, including special purpose
entities, controlled by the Company Contral exists when the Company has
the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating
polictes of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included 1n the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases

ot ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint
control, established by contractual agreement Associates are thase
entities over whose activities the Group has significant influence Interests
In Jjoint ventures and assoCiates are accounted for under the equity
method whereby the consolidated balance sheet incorporates the Group s
share of the net assets of its joint ventures and assoCiates and the
consohdated income statement includes the Group's share of the joint
ventures’ and associates’ profit or loss after tax for the period The
conschidated financial statements include the Group's share of the total
recognised gains and lasses of joint ventures and associates on an equity
accounsted basis

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of equity in a subsidiary
not attributable to the Company Non-controlling (nterests are shawn on a
net asset value basis In the conschdated financial statements

Where the Group has contractual relationships to share assets with other
entities {jointly-controlled assets) the Group’s share of the individual
items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses are recogmsed In the
financial statements and classified according to their nature

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the results of subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates to bring their accounting palicies into line
with those used by the Group Intra Group transactions, balances, income
and expense are ehminated an consolidation, where appropriate

Business combinations are accounted for under the acquisition method
Any discount between the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary, joint venture of
associate at the effective date of acquisition 1s credited to the income
statement in the period of acquisition while any excess 1s recognised as
goodwitl Goodwill 1s reported in the balance sheet as an intangibte asset
or included within associates and joint ventures, as appropriate Goodwill
1S subject to annual imparrment reviews and 1s stated at cost less any
impairment Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred

The gain or loss on disposal af subsidraries, joint ventures and associates
15 calculated by reference to the Group s share of the net assets at the
date of disposalt including the attributable amount of goodwill which has
not been impaired

(c) Foreign currency translation

At entity level, transactions dencminated in foreign currencies are
translated into the relevant functional currency at the exchange rate
ruling on the date the transaction 1s recorded Monetary assets and
lrabibities denaminated an forergn currencres are re-translated at the
exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date or, If hedged, at the
exchange rate under the related hedging transaction and the resultant
exchange differences are dealt within the income statement On
consolidation, the results of overseas companies are translated into
Sterling at the average exchange rate for the period and their assets and
liabitities are transiated into Sterling at the exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date Exchange differences ansing from the translation of
foreign operations, and of refated hedges, are taken to the translation
reserve They are released into the income statement upon disposal

In the cash flow statement, cash fiows denominated tn foreign currencies
are translated into Sterling at the average exchange rate for the period
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies continued
{d} Investment property

Investment preperties, including freehold and long leasehcid properties,
are those which are hetd either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or both investment properties include property that 1s being
constructed or develeped for future use as an investment property
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction
costs After imtial recognition investment properties are carried at their
fair vatues, based on annual market valuations as determined by
independent valuers

Any surplus or deficit on revaluation 1s recognised in the tncome
statement as a valuation gain or loss

when the Group begins to redevelop an existing iInvestment property for
continued use as investment property, the property continues to be
classified as an nvestment property and 1s carried at fair value with
valuation gamns and losses being recorded in the income statement

when the Group begins to re-develop an existing investment property
with a view to sale, the property 1s transferred to trading propertes and
held as a current asset The property 15 re-measured to far value at the
date of transfer and any gan or loss is recognised in the income
statement The re-measured amount becomes the deemed cost at which
the property 1s then carried in trading properties

{e) Leases

The Group has leases for which it must account for from the position of
both a lessee and a lessor

Group as lessor

Leases to tenants where substantially atl the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the Group as lessor, are cfassified as operating
leases Payments made under operating leases, including prepayments,
and net of any incentives provided by the Group, are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the penod of the lease

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the tenant are classified as finance leases A finance lease
asset I1s recognised as a receivable in the balance sheet at an amount
equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments plus any
unguaranteed residual values Payments received are allocated between
repayment of the finance lease recewvable and interest income so as 1o
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases A profit or loss on disposal 1s
recognised tn the iIncome statement upon entering 1nto a finance |ease for
any difference between the present value of the minimum lease payments
plus any unguaranteed residual values and the carrying value of the
property derecognised

Group as lessee

Finance leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the
commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, If
lower, at the present value of the mmimum lease payments Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease hiabihity so as to achieve a constant rate of Interest on the remainng
balance of the hability Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in
the income statement

A leased asset Is depreciated over the usefu! Iife of the asset However, if
there 1s no reasanable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by
the end of the lease term, the asset 1s depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful [ife of the asset and the lease term

Where 3 long leasehald property 1s held as an ivestment property, it s
nitally recognised at an amaunt equal to the sum of the premium paid
on acquisition and the present value of minmmum ground rent payments
The corresponding rent liabiity to the freeholder 15 included in the
balance sheet as a finance lease obligation

Operating fease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the
Income statement on a straight-fine basis ever the lease term

{f) Other property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses Land and buildings are stated at fair
value, with valuation gasns and losses recognised i equity

Depreciation is charged to the income statement ©n a straight-line basis
aver the estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment,
and major components that are accounted for separately, at rates varying
between 10% and 33 3% per annum, except for freehold property
occupied by the Group, which 1s depreciated where material over its
expected useful life

(g) Other financial assets

Financial assets avallable-for-sale are stated at fair value which 1s
determined by reference to an active market and any resultant gain or
loss 1s recognised 1n the fair value reserve Where the Group has the
positive intent and ability to hold a financial asset to maturity, it 1s stated
at amortised cost less impairment losses Trade recewvables, loans and
other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not
quated on an active market are classified as loans and receivables Loans
and receivables are Included at amertised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment Interest income 1s recognised by applying
the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immatenal Financial assets are assessed
for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date Mezzanine Ioan
investments compnise a loan principal, which attracts a rate of interest
and 1s accounted for as loans and receivables, and a profit partiopation
element which Is treated as an embedded denivative and classified as held
for trading. The embedded dervative 15 held at fair value determined by
reference
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1 Accounting policies continued
to a prudent estimate of the profit participation that

will be ultimately receivable, discounted

where matenial Financial assets are impaired where there 15 objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after initial
recognition, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
adversely affected

(h) Trading properties

Trading properties are held as current assets and are shown at the lower
of cost and net realisable value Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price at completion fess the estimated costs of completion
Including the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

(i) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other recewvables are stated at cost less any impairment
{J) Cash and cash equivaients

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances and call deposits Cash
equivalents are short-term (held for three months or tess), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group s cash management are included as a deduction from cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows

(k) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative fimancial instruments utilised by the Group are interest rate
and property derivative swaps and caps and forward exchange contracts
against known transactions The Group does not enter into dervative
contracts for solely speculative purposes Instruments are used for
hedging purposes to alter the risk profile of an existing underlying
exposure of the Group In line with its risk management pehicies Amounts
payable or receivable in respect of interest rate swaps are recognised as
adjustments to interest expense over the peniad of the contracts

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are
designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised
directly in equity and the ineffective portion s recognised immediately in
the income statement If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or
forecasted transaction resulis in the recognition of an asset or a lilability
then, at the time the asset or liabilty 1s recognised, the associated gains
or losses on the dernvative that had previcusty been recognised In equity
are included i1n the imitial measurement of the asset or hability

Changes in the fair value of dervative financial tnstruments that do not
qualfy for hedge accounting are recognised in the income statement as
they arise

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or
is sold, terminated, exercised, or no longer quabfies for hedge accounting
At that time, any cumulative gan or loss on the hedging instrument
recogrised in equity 15 retained n equity until the forecasted transaction
occurs

If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative
gam or loss recognised m equity 1s transferred to net profit er loss for the
period

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host
contracts are treated as separate dervatives when their nisks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of host contracts and the
host cantracts are not carnied at fair value, with gains or fosses reported
in the income statement

() Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at cost
(m) Borrowings and other financial habilities

Borrowings and other financial habilities are recognised initially at fair
value, less attributable transaction costs Subseguent to imitial
recognition, borrowings and other financial hatihitres are stated at
amartised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value
being recognised In the incomne statement over the penod of the
borrowings on an effective interest basis

{n) Employee benefits

Obligations for contribetions to defined contribution penston plans are
recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred

The Group s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans s
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current ang prnicr periads, that benefit 1s discounted to determine its
present value

The calculation 15 performed by an actuary using the projected unit credit
method The future benefit hability 1s offset by the fair value of the
penston plan assets at the balance sheet date

The expected annual charge for the defined benefit pensian costs as
estimated by the actuary 1s included in the income statement and
comprises the current service cost and the interest cost on the future net
benefit {:ability

Adjustments between expectation and actual, together with all actuarral
adjustments, are recognised in full in the year in which they arise and are
credited or debited directly to reserves
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1 Accounting policies continued
{0) Revenue

The Group recognises revenue on an accruals basis, when the amount of
revenve can be reliably measured and it is probable that future ecanomic
benefits wiil flow to the Group Revenue 1s measured at the far value of
the consideration received or receivable

The Group’s revenue comprises rental income, service charges and ather
recoverables from tenants, income from the prowvision of services
including property management fees, development fees and fund
management fees, proceeds of sales of its trading properties and
development income

Revenue from development i1s recogmised 1n the income statement in
proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance
sheet date Revenue IS not recognised if there are significant uncertainties
regarding recovery of the consideration due Prowvision 1s made for
anticipated development losses

Rental income from investment property leased out under an cperating
lease 15 recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease Lease incentives granted are recognised as an
Integral part of the total rental incame aver the life of the lease

Revenue from the sale of trading properties is recagnised In the income
statement when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, which 1s usually at completion

Performance fees recewvable from funds are recagnised in income when it
1s considered probable that a performance fee will be received and that
fee can be rehably estimated The amount of the performance fee
recognised Is the lower of the fee that has accrued at the balance sheet
date and a prudent estimate of the fee that will be receivable at the end
of the hife of the fund Where matenial, performance fees are discounted
with any unwinding of the discount being recagmsed in interest income

{p) Expenses

Rental payments made under operating leases are recognised in the
income statement on a straight-hine basis over the term of the lease
Lease incentives received are recognised (n the (ncome statement as an
integral part of the total lease expense on a straight-line basis over the
lite of the lease

Mintmum lease payments on finance leases are apportioned between the
finance charge and the reduction of the cutstanding liability The finance
charge 15 allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
hability Contingent rents are charged as expenses w the periods in which
they are mncurred

(q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs relating to the financing of development properties,
major improvements to investment properties and trading properties that
requere substantial periods of time to bring into saleable condition are
capitalised Borrowing costs are calculated by reference to the actual rate
payable on borrowings specific to a project or, where a project 1s financed
out of general funds, to the average rate for all borrowings Borrowing
costs are captalised from the commencement of the project, untit the
date of practical completion of the project

All ather horrowtng costs are recognised in the Group income statement
in the period in which they are incurred

(r) Corporate income taxes

Income tax on the profit and loss far the year comprises current and
deferred tax mcluding tax on capital gains Income tax 1s recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directiy tn eguity, 1n which case it 15 recognised In equity

Cyrrent tax 1S the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previgus years
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement betavse of items of items of income ¢r expense that are not
taxable or deductible The hability fer current tax I calculated using the
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, refer to note 18 for reconcihiation

Deferred tax 1s provided using the balance sheet llabiity method,
prowiding for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and habities for financial reperting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes The following temporary differences are not
provided for the initial recognition of assets and habilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profii and differences relating to
invastments In subsichartes to the extent that they will prabably not
reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax prowided 1s
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date The Group provides deferred tax on
investment properties by reference to the tax that would be due on the
ultimate sale of the properties Recognition on this basis means that,
where applicable, indexation allowance 1s taken Into account In
determining the tax base cost Where tax hiabtlities arising on the sale of
property are able to be deferred agaimst the cost of new praperty, a
deferred tax habihity 1s provided, to recognise that tax may be payable
should the new property be sold in the future




Grosvenor Group Limited
Eengrg. 3! Statements for Jig y8d7 ending
31 Decernber 2013

26

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies continued
(r) Corporate income taxes continued

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable
that future taxable profits will be avarlable against which the asset can be
utiised Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that 1t I1s no longer
prabable that the related tax benefit will be realised

Deferred tax assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
appty in the pertod 1n which the asset 1s realised, based on tax rates {and
tax iaws) that have been enacted by the end of the reporting period The
measurement of deferred tax assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follew from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets

(s) Government grants

An uncondittonal government grant 1s recognised in the income
statement as revenue when the grant becomes receivable Any other
government grant 1s recognised in the balance sheet initially as deferred
income when there 15 reasonable assurance that it will be recewed and
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to it Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses mncurred are recognised as revenue
In the Income statement on a systematic basis tn the same penods In
which the expenses are incurred Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset

(t) Adoption of standards

The Group adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC
interpretations during the year Their adoption did not have any material
effect on the ftnancial performance or position of the Greup

- Amendments to IFRS 7 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

- IFRS 13 Fair value Measurement

- 1A519 Employee Benefits (as rewised in 2011) - see Note 2 for the
effects of the restatement of 2012 figures

- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive
Income

- Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets

- IFRS Annual Improvements Cycle 2009-2011

The following standards and interpretations have been issued but are not
yet effective

-~ |FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

— IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

- IFRS 12 Dnsclosure of Interests in Other Entities

- |AS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)

— |IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in
2011)

- JAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
—  |AS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

—  1AS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards and
interpretatrens 1s unlikely to have a maternial impact on the financial
statements of the Group in the pericd of initial application

(u) significant judgements and key estimates

1) Property valuations

Investment properties are carned at fair value determined by market
value 1n accordance with valuations carned out Dy independent valuers
Valuations are based on a number of key assumptions including an
estimate of future rental tncome and the appropriate discount rate For
mnvestment properties under development, key judgements also include
estimates of future development costs

Trading properties are carried at the fower of cost and net realisable
value Net realisable value requires udgement in estimating the future
net realisable proceeds and costs to complete for each trading property

ii) Development provisions

Provisians for losses on developments are based on estimates ansing
from a detailed review of the remarning costs to complete each project
and investment value at compietion
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1 Accounting policies continued
(u) Stgnificant Judgements and key estimates continued

itl) Leases

The accounting treatment for a lease 1s determined by its classification as
either an operating lease or a finance lease Lease classification requires
judgement In determining whether substantially all of the risks and
benefits associated with ownership have been transferred between the
lessar and lessee

when operating lease premiums are received 1n exchange for the grant of
a long leasehold interest that is classified as an operating lease, the
related profit 1s recognised over the term of the lease Many of the
transactions giving nse to deferred lease premiums took place a number
of years ago before the requirement to spread profit recogmition, the
Group applies judgement to estimate certain of the lease premium
deferrals and asscoiated deferred tax assets

The basis of judgement determining whether a lease 15 a finance lease or
an operating lease was reviewed dunng the year, for the effect of the
review see Note 2

iv) Performance fees

Recognition of performance fees recetvabie from funds requires
estimates 1o be made regarding the performance of funds over the
duration of the performance period and, where performance 1s measured
against relative benchmarks that have not yet been published, estimates
of the expected benchmark returns

v) Defined benefit pension schemes

The balance sheet assets and llabilities and the expected annual charge in
respect of defined benefit pension plans are determined according to
estimates carned out by actuaries on the basis of assumptions agreed by
the Board The key assumptions underlying these calculations are set out
In Note 12

vI) Taxation

The Group applies judgement in the application of taxation regulations
and makes estimates in calculating current income tax and deferred tax
assets and habilittes, including the likely availability of future taxable
profits against wiuch deferred tax assets can be utilised

vii} iberia

The Group has economic interests both directly and through entities
within Iberra The value and income streams from these investments may
be impacted by the outcome of the economic and political uncertainty in
the Euro area As a result of imited comparable transactional evidence in
certain Iberian markets, there 15 a greater than usual degree of
uncertainty in respect of the figures reported by our valuers in those
markets

In reaching a conclusion on the value of Grosvenor's investment 11 Sonae
Sierra 5GPS, we have considered both our strategy as a long-term
investor and other relevant considerations, Including the continued strong
operating results, the balance between strgnger Brazihan and German
markets and weaker Iberian markets, improving investor sentiment and
interest in Iberian property investment and the particular strength of
several large dominant assets in Portugal which are not representative of
the Portuguese shopping centre sector
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2 Prior period adjustments

(1) Reclassification of operating leases: During the year, management has reviewed the basis of jJudgement that determines whether a lease 15 a
finance or an operating lease The revised methodalogy provides a more accurate assessment of the transfer of substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership including the critenia that the nisks of maintaining and responsibility for insurtng the asset rest with the lessee and that any
rewards remaiming with Grosvenor are insignificant by reference to the total value of the asset This assessment now considers the value of the lease
sold as well as the proportion of the head lease length disposed of

Whilst there 15 no change to the accounting policy for the treatment of finance and operating leases, refinement of the judgement used In determining
finance and operating leases has led to a material reclassification of existing operating leases as finance leases and therefare a prior year adjustment
to equity {for 2012 opening balances) and income statement profit (for transactions entered inta in 2012) from deferred profits 1s required

(2) Pension adjustment. The Group has adopted the amendments to |AS 19 Employee Benefits One of the consequences is that the interest expense n
respect of the defined benefit pensicn schemes 1s calculated an the net deficit, rather than separate income and expense amounts for the scheme
assets and habilities

The effect of the prior year adjustments on the 2012 consolidated income statement 1s as fallows

2012 Published 2012 Adustment™ 2012 Ad;ustmentm Z012 Restated
£m £m £&m £m
Total revenue 2669 (14) - 269 5
Gross rental income 1354 (t4) - 134 2
Property ouigoings (514) - - (51 4)
Net rental income B4 2 (14) - 828
Other income 387 - - 387
Administrative expenses (893) - (17 (91 0)
Net losses on trading properties 1 - - (137)
Net gains/{losses) on cther investments 09 - - 09
Net gains on revaluation and sale of investment property 127 16 3 - 3290
Imparment of goodwill - - - -
Share of profit from joint ventures and asseciates 585 - - 585
Gain from operations including share of joint ventures 3920 149 17) 405 ¢
Dividend income - - - -
Financial income 58 02 - 60
Financial expenses (44 9) - - (44 9)
Fair value agjustments 15 - - 15
Net financing costs (378) 02 - (37 4)
Profit befare tax 354 4 151 - 3678
Current tax expense (17 8} - - (17 8)
Deferred tax expense (28 5) (06} - (25 1)
Profit for the year 3081 145 an 3209
Attributable to:
Equity helders of the parent 3126 145 an 3254
Non contreling interests (4 5) - - 45
Profit for the year 3081 145 an 3209

(1) + (2) see above
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2 Prior period adjustments continued

The effect of the prigr year adjustments on the 2012 and 2011 consolidated balance sheets is as follows

2012 Published
£m

2012

2011 #ublished
£m

201! Agpustm ent™
£m

2011 Restated
im

m
Assels
Non-current assets
Investment property 3,0610 (6 6) 3,054 4 28127 {87) 2,8040
QOther property, plant and equipment 48 6 - 486 4046 - 406
Investments in subsidiaries - - - - - -
Investments in joint ventures 1,003 9 - 10039 1074 8 - 10748
QOther financial assets 515 14 529 369 - 369
Intangible assets 40 - 40 41 - 41
Deferred tax assets 1033 (35 9) 674 103 4 (35 3} 681
Total non-current assets 4,2723 [411) 42312 4,0725 {44 0) 40285
Current assets
Trading properties 294 8 - 2948 245 2 - 2452
Trade and other receivables 200 3 - 2003 158 5 32 1617
Other financial assets 98 - 93 32 - 32
Corpgrate income tax receivable 56 - 56 120 - 120
Cash and cash equivalents 238 4 ~ 236 4 2375 - 2375
Total current assets 7489 - 7489 656 4 32 6596
TOTAL ASSETS 5,021 2 {411) 49801 4,728 9 (40 8) 4 688 1
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilitres
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (769 4) - {769 4) (776 8) - (774 8)
Trade and other payables (228 6) 155 8 (72 8) (204 3) 1410 (633)
Employee benefits (34 2) - (34 2) (37 2) - (37 2)
Deferred tax lkabilities (6001 - (600 1) (576 4) - (576 4)
Taotal non-current liabilities (1,632 3) 155 8 (1476 5) {1594 7) 141 Q (1,453 7)
Current labilities
Qverdrafts - - - {01} - (e }]
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings {49 5) - (49 5) (28 6) - (286)
Trade and other payables {153 9} - (153 %9) (12313) - (1233)
Corporate income tax payable 177 - (17 7) (157) - (15 7}
Provisigns (39} - (39) (34) - (34)
Total current liabihities (225 Q) - {225 0) (1711) - (1711)
TOTAL LIABILITIES {1,857 3} 155 8 {17019) {1,765 8) 1410 {1,624 8)
NET ASSETS 31635 1147 32786 2,563 1 100 2 3,0633
Equity
Share capital 1025 - 1025 1350 - 1390
Share premium 283 - 283 2813 - 283
Reserves 4861 - 4861 5093 - 509 3
Retained earrungs 2460 4 1n47 258753 21787 100 2 22789
Shareholders' funds 30775 1n47 31922 2,855 3 100 2 2,955 5
Non-controlling interests B6 4 - 864 1078 - 1078
TOTAL EQUITY 31639 1147 327846 29631 100 2 30633

(1) see top of page 28
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2 Prior period adjustments continued

The effect of the prior year adjustment on the 2012 consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome Is as follows

2012 Published 2012 Adpstment ¥ 2012 acpstment @
5 £m £m

2012 Restated
£m

Profit for the year 3081 145 tn 3209
Gtiher comprehensive income which may be rectassified to profit or 1oss in
subsequent periods
Revaluation of property. plant and equipment 36 - - 36
Available for-sale financial assets
Losses arising during the period - Group (18) - - (18)
Fair value adjustments on swaps
Gains arising during the period - Group 17 - - 17
Gains ansing during the period - joint ventures and assoclates 34 - - 34
Exchange differences on translation of foresgn operations (68 3) - - (68 3)
Tax refating to gains on fair value adjustments and revaluations (11) - - (11
Other comprehensive mcome which may be reclassified to profit or loss i subsequent periods (62 5) - - (62 5)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsegquent penods
Actuanal gains on defined benefit pension schemes 31 - 17 48
Tax relating to actuarial gains {15) - - (15
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 16 - £7 i3
Qther comprehensive (expense)/income (50 9) - 17 5% 2}
Total comprehensive income 2472 14 5 - 2617
Attributable to
Equnty holders of the parent 259 2 145 - 27137
Non-controlling interests (120} - - (120)
2472 145 - 2617
(1) +{2) see top of page 28
The prior year adjustment does not matenally affect the consolidated statement of cash flows
3 Foreign currency
The principal exchange rates used to translate into Sterling the results, assets, habilities and cash flows of overseas companies were as follows
Average rate Year end rate
2013 2012 2013 2012
£1 £l £l 3
us Dollars 157 159 1.66 143
Canadian Dollars L6862 F59 176 162
Euros 118 123 1.20 123
Austrahan Dollars 1.62 153 185 157
Hong Kong Collars 12.18 1231 12 84 12 60
Chinese Renminbi 266 100 10 03 1013
Japanese Yen 152 59 127 28 174 038 14055
Swedish Krona 10.21 1071 10 64 1057
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4 Segmental analysis

The Group s reportable segments are the three regional Operating Companies, indirect investments and Grosvenor Fund Management These operating
segments reflect the companents of the Group that are reguiarly reviewed by the Group Chief Executive to allocate resources and assess performance
Not allocatad represents the Group Hotding Company and cansolidation adjustments The accounting policies of the reportable segments are cansistent
with the Group accounting policies detaied in Note 1

2013
Proprietary assets - Direct Propriglary assets - Indirect
Manages by
Britain & Asia Grosvenor Fund Sonae Grosvenar Fund Not
Ireland Americas Paciic Managerent Siesra Management allocated Total
&m &m €m m tm fm m £m

Income statement
Gross rental income 755 310 73 109 - - - 1247
Property cutgomngs (excluding major
refurbishments) (27 2) 81 (15) 24) - - - (39.2)
Net rental income 483 229 58 85 - - - 855
Fees and other mcome/(expenses) 97 48 12 13 - 177 an 33.6
Net gains on trading properties 774 105 - - - - - B79
Administrative expenses (20 0) (18 1) a1y (46) - {315) (133) {98 6)
Net financing costs (24 9) {6 4) {o )] {20} - - {22} {36 0)
Revenue profit/{loss) of joint ventures
(Note 23} 270 100 91 92 489 an - 1027
Group revenue profit/{loss) 175 237 45 124 485 (14 9) (16 &) 175.1
Net gains on revatuanion and sale of
Investment praoperties 3214 376 52 (39) - - - 3547
Major refurbishment costs 69) - - - - - - (69)
Impairment of goodwill - - - (4 4) - - - {4 4)
Net gains/{losses) on other rvestments - - 17 (19 4) - - - {177)
Derivative fair value adjustmerits - 26 10 04 - - 16 56
Other gains/(Josses) of jont ventures
(Note 23) a9 16 2 137 161 (35 3} - - 76
Profit/(loss) before tax 4329 BO1 261 (44) 9¢ (14 9) (15 0) 514 0
Joint venture tax and non contrelitng
interests (01 {01) (13) 20 (7 6) - - (71)
Profit/(loss) before tax reported in the
inceme statement 4328 800 24 8 z4) 16 {14 9) (150 506.9
Tax expense (36 3} 277 7n 39 - 15 57 (68 4)

Profit/(loss) after tax reported in the
Income statement 3965 523 171 (6 3) 16 (13 4) 93 438 5
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2013
Proprietary asseis  Direcl Proprietary assers  indirect
Managed by
Britan & Asia Grasvenor Fund Sanag Grosvenor Fund Not
irelang Amencas Pacitic Management Siefra Management aflocated Total
£&m tm £m m £m £m £m £m
Balance sheet (proportional basis)
Investment praperty 24957 698 4 4578 4819 L1641 33 - 53013
Investment property under development 1534 55 - - 427 - - 2006
Trading property 1435 909 532 145 - - - 3021
Qther financial assets - 146 - 18 8 - 05 - 33.9
Total property assets 27626 8094 5110 515 2 12068 39 - 58389
Net debt {127 5) (188 5) a7 (243 2) (4%11) 244 (51 6) (1,255.2)
Deferred tax (414 6) (102 5) (253) (227) (178 1) 23 30 (737 9)
Other net (habilities)/assets {84 5) (18 2) 13 {18 6) (1957 9) (25 2) 362 (304 9)
Net assets 21660 5002 3093 2307 3397 54 (k0 4) 3,540 9
Investment property additrons 2316 690 17t & 288 65 2 03 - 566.5
2012 (restated)
Proprietary assets  Direct Propnetary assets - Ingirect
Managed by
Britamn & Asia Grosvenor Fund Sonag Grosvenar Fund Not
Ireland Amenicas Paafic Management Sierra Management allocated Tatal
£m tm fm £ £m £m £m £m
Income statement
Gross rental Income 734 302 59 247 - - - 134 2
Property outgoings (excluding major
refurbishments) {25 3) {69) {21} 47) - - - (39 0}
Net rental income 481 2313 38 200 - - - 952
Fees and other icome/{expenses) n7z 39 10 12 - 238 27 389
Net gans/{losses) on trading properties 34 13 - (18 4} - - - {137
Administrative expenses (17 0) (14 8) (121 (59) - (332) {8 0) (91 0}
Net fnancing costs (22 9) (72} {13) {5 5) - - (20) (38 9)
Revenue profit/{lass) of joint ventures
{Note 23} 119 70 184 202 374 {0 9) - 940
Group revenue profit/{loss) 352 135 98 116 374 (10 3) (127) 845
Net gains on revaluation and sale of
Investment propertes 2816 359 15 100 - - - 3290
Major refurbishment costs {12 4) - - - - - - (12 4)
Net gains/(losses) on other invesiments - - 10 - - [} - 0%
Derwative fair value adjustments - on (15) - - - 35 13
Other (losses)/gains of joint ventures (Note
23) 02 141 255 (16 2) (517) - (0 3) (28 8)
Profit/(lass) before tax 3042 628 363 54 {14 3) (10 4) (95) 3745
Jomnt venture tax and non controlhng
interests - 03 (27) 09 {4 6) - - 67)
Profit/{loss) before tax reported in the
Ircome statement 3042 625 336 63 (18 9) (10 4) (5 5) 3678
Tax expense (24 8) (18 8} 07 {61) 01) 12 10 {46 9)
Profit after tax reported in the income
statement 279 4 437 343 Q2 (19 0) (32} (85) 3209
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4 Segmental analysis continued
2012 (restated)

Proprietary assets - Direct

Propretary assets - Indirect

Managed by
Artain & Asa Grosvener Fung Sonae Gresvencr Fund Not
Irelang Americas Pacific Management Sierra Wanagement allorated Total
£€m m Em &m im £m im £m
Balance sheet (propartional basis)
Investment property 21354 6917 3459 7511 11510 37 - 51188
Investment property under 028 _ _ ) 012 _ _ 1840
development
Trading praperty 3138 992 355 375 - - - 4860
Other financial assets - 124 31 208 - Q5 - 368
Total property assets 25420 80313 3845 8494 1,2422 42 - 5.825 6
Net debt (340 4} 216 9) (113 8) (3415} (503 2) 242 (920) (1,583 6)
Deferred tax (422 6} (80 5) 91) (40 9} (189 5) 28 32 (736 6}
Other net (hatilities)/assets (17 1} (26 Q) 70 (50 8) (199 4) (241) B36 (226 8)
Net assets 1,7619 4799 2686 416 2 3501 71 (52} 3,278 6
Investment property additions 485 206 208 121 335 - - 1355

5 Revenue profit

The Group uses revenue profit as its pnimary measure of underlying operating performance The calculation of revenue profit and its reconciliation to

profit before tax 15 set out below

201 2012 (restated)
Shase of Share of
Group Hmm rl.ﬁg Total Graup plnl‘\';enr:t!ugg Tatal
£m £m fm &m &m fm
Gross rental income 1247 190 5 3152 1342 1735 3077
Property outgoings {excluding major
refurbishments) (39.2) {71.8) {111 0) (390) (46 0 {85Q)
Net rental income (before major refurbishments) 85.5 118.7 204.2 952 1275 2227
Fees and other income 336 29.5 631 387 183 570
Profit/{ioss) on trading properties 879 27.4 1153 {137) 183 46
Administrative expenses (98.6) (35.0) (133.6) (91Q) (27 8) (118 8)
Net financing costs {excluding dernvative fair value
adjustments) (36.0) (379 {73.9) (387) {42 3) (810)
Revenue profit/{loss) (Praportional basis) 72.4 102.7 175.1 {9.5) %40 845
Retonohiation of revenue profit to profit before 1ax
Revenue profit/{loss) 724 1027 1751 {9 5) 940 B45
loint ventures
- Revenue profit - (102.7) {102.1} - (94 0) (94 0)
- Equity accounted profit - 103.2 103.2 - 585 585
Net gans on revaluation and sale of iInvestment
properties 354 7 - 354.7 3290 - 32940
Major refurbtshment costs (6.9) - (6 9} {12 4} - {12 4)
Net (losses)/gains on other investments (177 - arn 0y - (]
Impairment of goodwill (4.4) - (4.4) - - -
Oerivative fair value adjustments 56 - 5.6 13 - 13
Profit/{loss) betore tax 4037 103 2 506.9 30§ 3 5BS 3678
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6 Revenue

2013 2012 (restated)
£m £m
Rental iIncome 124.7 1342
Income from trading and development properties 3470 789
Service charge income 101 137
Other income 33.6 387
515 4 2655

7 Gross rental income
2(;1: 2012 (resla:;gra
Gross lease payments recevable 1229 132 4
Amortisation of lease incentives 05 09
Amortisation of deferred tease premiums 13 09
124 7 134 2

Investment properties are leased out under operating {eases The majority of operating lease terms fail in the range between six months and 20 years

Total contingent rents included in gross rental income amounted to Enil (2012 £nil)

8 Property outgoings

2013

212

£m m
Recoverable service charge income 101 137
Recoverable service charge expenses {10 1) {14 4)
Net recoverable service charge expenses - €7
Major refurbishment costs (6.9) (12 4)
Other property operating expenses {39.2) (38 3)
Total net property QutgoIngs (46.1) (514)
Operating expenses associated with unlet properties totalled £0 6m (2012 £1 4m)
9 Other income
2013 2012
£m £€m
Fund management and asset management fees 231 264
Project management fees 2.0 23
QOther income 8.5 100
336 387
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10 Administrative expenses

2013 2012 {restateq)

£m &m

Staff costs {including Directars) 715 £33
Office costs 17.1 163
Auditor's remuneration - audit services 17 13
- gther services 1.0 05

Other professtonal fees 75 19
Allocation of costs to Grosvenaor Trusts (16.8) (16 Q)
Other adminisirative expenses 16.6 137
98.6 91Q

Al of the Group’s Operating Companies were audited by Deloitte LLP and other member firms of Deloitte Touche Techmatsu Limited £0 2m (2012
£0 2m) of the total audit fee 15 estimated to relate to the audit of the Group and £1 5m (2012 £1 1m) to the audit of the Group's subsidraries The
Company s audit fees (€0 2m) were borne by ancther Group company (2012 £0 1m) Amounts paid to other accountancy firms in 2013 totalled £1 5m

(2012 £15m)
11 Employee information

“E.’, 002 (reslateEt:r:
Staff costs
Wages and salanes 677 594
Social security contributions 49 47
Other staff costs 6.8 59
Pension costs
Contributigns to defined contribution plans 3.2 26
Net cost of defined benefit plans (Note 12) 84 65
210 791
fncluded In
Administrative expenses 715 633
Property operating expenses 113 98
Development costs 8.2 60
910 791

The costs of staff directly engaged in investment activities are mcifuded in property cutgomgs and the costs of those directly engaged in development

attivities are inctuded in development costs
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11 Employee information continued

Employee numbers

At the eng of the year Average

2013 2012 013 2012

number number namber numbar

Britain & Ireland 247 241 241 241
Americas 20 66 70 65
Asla Pacific 53 62 57 62
Fund management 102 117 107 125
Indirect 4 2 4 2
Halding Company and shared services 43 44 41 43
519 532 520 538

The Company employs nil staff (2012 m)
12 Retirement benefit schemes

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates a number of defined contribution retirement benefit schemes The Group contributes a percentage of salary into defined
contribution schemes to fund the benefits The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
independent pension providers The only obhigation of the Group with respect to the defined contribution schemes 15 to make the specified
contributions

The total cost of defined contribution pension schemes charged to the income statement was £3 2m (2012 £2 6m) }
Defined benefit schemes |

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes in Britan & Ireland, the USA and Canada Benefits in the scheme 1n the USA were frozen in 2007
and the scheme in Canada was closed to new entrants in 2008

In the UK, the Group operates a defined benefit plan which has benefits based on service and final salary The plan is approved by Her Majesty s
Revenue and Customs for tax purposes, and 15 operated separately from the Group and managed by a set of Grosvenar and staff appanted Trustees
The Trustees are responsible for payment of the benefits and management of the plans assets The plan 1s subject to UK regulations, which require the
Group and Trustees to agree a funding strategy and contributicn schedule for the plan

In Canada, the Group operates defined benefit plans which have benefits based on service and final salary The plans are approved by Canada Revenue
Agency for Canadian tax purposes and the IRS for LUSA tax purposes, and are operated separately from the Group and managed by independent
trustees The trustees are respansible for payment of the benefits and management of the plans’ assets The plans are subject to Canadian and USA
regulations, which require the Group and trustees to agree a funding strategy and contnbution schedule for the plans

The defined benefit schemes are funded and are administered by member and employer nominated trustees Independent qualified actuartes complete
valuations of the schemes at least every three years and In accordance with their recommendations annual contributrans are pard to the schemes so as
to secure the benefits set out in the rules

As with the vast majonty of similar arrangements, the Group incurs a high degree of risk relating to the defined benefit plan These risks include
investment nisks and demographic nsks, such as the nisk of members living longer than expected The plan holds a large proportion of its assets in
equity investments Strong future equity returas would be expected to reduce the Group's future cash contributiens {and vice versa) If the
contributions currently agreed are insufficient to pay the benefits due, the Group will need to make further contributions to the plan

The UK scheme 15 a multi-employer scheme because it provides pensions for both the Group and employees of other entities owned by the
shareholders The Group accounts for its proportignate share of the defined benefit obligation, scheme assets and cost of this scheme, based on the
propartion of the accrued habilities that relate to the Group s employees Changes in the Group's proportionate share of the assets and liabilities of this
scheme arising during the year are treated as actuanal gains and losses
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12 Retirement benefit schemes continued

Actuarnial valuations were {ast carried out at the following dates

UK 31 December 2011
UsAa 31 December 2012
Canada 31 December 2010

All the valuations have been updated to 31 December 2013 The results of these valuations together with the key assumptions used are set out below

In addition to the defined benefit schemes set out above, the Group operates unfunded defined benefit schemes in UK and the USA to satisfy pension

commitments not catered for by the funded schemes

The Group has agreed with the Trustees of the UK scheme to make contributions, in addition to payments in respect of the continuing accrual of benefits, of
£3 8m per annum from 2014 untl 2018 to fund the scheme deficit The level of contributions will be reviewed following the next triennial valuation due as

at 21 December 2014

In Canada, the Group has agreed with the Trustees of the plan ta make contrtbutions, in addition to payments in respect of the continuing accrual of
benetits, of $0 75 mithon per annum from 2010 until 2015 to fund the plan deficit 1n Canada and the US contributions are determined on an anaual

basis The level of contributions will be reviewed following the next trienmial valuation due as at 31 December 2013

The weighted average duration to payment of the expected benefit cash flows from the plan in respect of accrued service at the end of the accounting

period 1s approximately 21 years

The amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of defined benefit schemes are:

o3 2017 {restates)
£m £m
Current sarvice cost 6.2 50
Past service cost 0.2 -
Netinterest cost 13 15
Expected return on scheme assets - -
Admin expense 0.1 01
Settlements and curtailments - oy
78 65

The amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in respect of defined benefit schemes are:
2013 2032 (restated)
£m fm
Actuanal gains 10.9 48
10.9 48

The movement in the net defined benefit obligation Is:

013 2012
£m &m
1 January (34.2) (371)
Expense charged to profit and tgss (7.8) (&5)
Amount recognised ouiside of profit and loss 1o 48
Employer contributions 68 37
Benefit payments 02 02
Exthange movement 04 08
31 December {23 6) (34 2)
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12 Retirement benefit schemes continued

The amounts included in the balance sheet arising from the Group’s obligations in respect of defined benefit schemes are:

2013 2012
£m &m
Present value of unfunded abligations (15 6) (15 7)
Present value of funded abligations 1937 (157 Q)
Prasent value of total defirec benefit obligattons (209.3) (1727
Far value of scheme assets 1857 1385
Defined benefit pension defiot (23 6) (342)
The net deficit arises in the following reglons:
UK {10 6) {132
Usa (7 6) (121}
Canada (5.4} 89
(23 6) (34 2)
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obiigations are:
2013 012
Em £m
At 1 lanuary 1727 177 8
Current service cast 6.2 48
Past service cost 02 -
Interast cost 84 75
Settlements and curtallments - Qn
Actuaral losses/(gains) 306 61
Benefits paid (6.3) (S 4}
Exchange movements {25) (18)
At 31 December 2093 1727
Analysis of the scheme liabilities:
2013 2012
£m €m
UK 164.1 19 7
USA 18.7 225
Canaca 26.5 305
At 31 December 2093 1727
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12 Retirement benefit schemes continued

Movements in fair value of scheme assets were:

2013 2012

£m fm

At 1 January 138.5 1406

Interest on plan assets 7.1 74

Actual return gn plan assets |ess interest on plan assets 417 (30)

Contributions by the employer 6.8 37

Benefits paid (6.2) {93}

Excharge movemenis (2.2) 09

At 31 December 185 7 1385
Analysis of scheme assets:

2013 012

m im

Equities 138.8 1007

Corporate bonds 238 290

Mults asset credit funds 12.3 -

Other 108 38

Fair value of plan assets 185 7 1385

The plan does not invest directly in property occupied by the Group or in financal securities issued by the Group The plans’ invested assets are traded

daily in active markets other than the multi-asset crecit funds which are traded manthly

The plans’ assets are invested in a diversified range of asset ciasses as 5et out inthis note These assets mclude iabhity matching assets and annuity
policies purchased by the trustees whrch aim ta match the benefits to be paid to some members from the plan and therefore remove the investment,

inflatien and demographic risks in relation to thase liabilities
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12 Retirement benefit schemes continued

The principal actuarial assumptions used for accounting purposes reflect prevailing market conditions and are:
2013

Britatn & ireland usa {anada
Discount rate 4 50% 4 60% 4 90%
Expected rate of salary increase 510% n/a 3.50%
Experted rate of future pensian increase 360% 2 50% 3 50%
Inflation 3.60% 2.50% 2 00%
2012

Britain & Iretand USA Canada
Discount rate 4 50% 3 80% 430%
Expected rate of salary increase 4 70% n/a 350%
Expected rate of future pension increase 320% 250% 330%
Intlation 3 20% 250% 230%

Male Female
2012 2012 2013 2012

Life expectancy of a 65-year-old today
Britain & Ireland 259 258 273 272
Usa 19.3 192 211 21
Canada 213 197 235 221
Life expectancy of a 65-year-ald in 20 years
Britain & ‘reland 283 281 29.2 291
USA 193 191 211 21
Canada 224 212 24.2 229

The sensitivity to the assumptions above cf the total defined benefit obhgatior and approximate income statement charge Is set out below

Total defined benefit Approximate

obligation charge in 2014

Em &m

Based on the assumptions above 209 3 80
Approximate impact of

Increase in discount sate by O 22% 93) (04)

Increase 10 inflation rate by 0 25% 93 04

Increase tn Nife expectancy by ene year at 65 60 3

The calculations n this section kave been carrted out using the same methed and data as the Group’s pensions and accounting figures with each
assumptton adjusted as shown above Each assumption has been vaned individually and a combination of changes in assumptions could produce a
different result
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13 Directors’ remuneratton details

2013 2012
£000 £000

Aggregate remuneration
Emaluments 1,282 1229
Performance-related bonus 932 545
Long term incentive scheme 974 353
3,188 2,137

The total amounts payable under fong-term ncentive schemes comprise all amounts to which Directars became unconditionally entitled duning the
year including aggregate ameunts that vested as a consequence of Directors retirng

The amounts above include for the highest paid Director emoluments of £552,000 (2012 £545,000), a performance-related bonus of £551,000 (2012
£345,000} and long-term incentive plans of £607,000 (2012 £226,000)

Retirement benefits accrued to two Directors The highest paid Directar accrued benefits urder the defined benefit scheme and an unfunded defined
benefit scheme The other Director accrued benefits under an arrangement combining defined benefit and maoney purchase benefits until April 2012
when he became a deferred member of the defined henefit scheme The total annual accrued pension ungder the defined benefit pension schemes was
£66,000 (2012 £61,000) and for the highest paid Director was £66,000 (2012 £57,000) Total contributtons In respect of money purchase pension
benefits were £ml (2012 £5,000) and for the highest paid Director were £nil (2012 £mil)

14 Net gains/losses on trading properties

2013 2012

£m €m

Development costs 85) {100)
Proceeds from sale of trading properties 3470 789
Carrying value of trading properties sofd (248 9) (76 9)
Provision for impawment of trading properties {1.7) [CF)]
879 (137)

The carrying value of trading properties sold includes £10 1m of capitalised interest (2012 £1 1m)




2 Grosvenor Group Limited
4 Financiz! Statements for the year ending
31 December 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 Net (losses)/gains on other investments

2013 2012
m &
Impairment of other financral assets as recycled from the farr value reserve (19 4) -
Gain on disposal of ather fixed assets 17 oe
azn 09

16 Net gains on revaluation and sale of investment property
2013 2012 {reslated}
fm Em
Valuation gains on investment property 3231 2991
Valuation lgsses on investment property {14.1) 14 Q)
Valuation lesses on redevelopment properties 0.3 -
Net valuation gains on investrment property 3093 2851
Profit on dispasal of investment property 454 439
3547 3290

17 Net financing costs

013 2012 (restated)
£m Em
Interest income 4.1 40
Other financial tncome 17 20
Financial income 58 60
Gross interest expense (Including divtdends on preference shares) (46 0) {47 0)
Interest capitaiised 99 76
Commitment and other financing costs (6 4) {55)
Financial expenses (42 5) (44 9)
Fair value adjustments of interest rate swaps and foreign exchange contracts 56 13
Fair value adjustments of embedded derivatives 07 02
Total fair value adjustments 6.3 15
Net financing costs (30.4) (37 4)

The average rate of interest capitalised in the year was 6 4% (2012 6 9%)

The fair value adjustments above include interest rate swaps which relate to cash flow hedges that are not designated as effective The movements in

fair value of these derivatives arise from underlying market movements and changes in time to maturity
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18 Corporate income tax expense
Recognised in the income statement

2013 2012 {restated)
£m £&m
Current tax expense
UK corporation tax at 23 25% (2012 24 5%) 351 111
Overseas tax 270 138
Adjustment for prior years {6.3) (71)
558 178
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 9.3 289
Benefit of tax gains/{losses) recognised - Ccl
Adjustment for prior years 33 01
126 291
Total income tax expenses in the income statement 68 4 469
Deferred tax recognised in other comprehensive income
2013 2012 (restated)
£m m
Revaluation of property plant and equipment 01 03
Fatr value adjustments on financeal instruments treated as cash flow hedges 1.2 08
Fair value adjustments on avaiable for-sale financial assets - -
Actuanal gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 3.9 15
Fareign exchange movements - -
Financial expenses 5.2 26
Reconcihiation of effective tax rate
erofit before taxaticn 506 9 3678
Less share of profit of joint ventures {103 2) {585)
Add profit of joint ventures where the tax charge 15 directly attributable to the Group 718 280
Adjusted Group profit before taxaticn 4755 3373
Tax on adjusted Group profit at standard UK corporation tax rate of 23 26% (2012 24 5%) 110.6 826
Higher tax rates on overseas earnings 17.0 126
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 18 48
Other items attracting no tax relief or liability 83 (79)
Other timing differences (3.4) (30)
Reduction in tax rate on future deferred tax liabilities (62.9) (35 1)
Adjustments th respect of cves prowision i prior years 3.0} 71
Total incame tax expense In the income statement 68.4 469
Effective tax rate based on adjusted Greup profit 14.4% 13 9%

Effective tax rate excluding the rate change impact on deferred tax 27.6% 24 3%
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18 Corporate Income tax expense continued

Factors affecting tax charges

Grosvenor, as an international property group, pays taxes in the junsdictions where it has operations and holds interests in property The Group’s fax
charge and effective tax rate are a direct reflection of the mix of profits acrass the business regions

Grosvencer's profits are comprised of realised profits being net revenue and gamns on property disposals and unrealised profits being revaluations of

Investment properties

Grosvenar accrues and pays current tax to local governments on realised profits and gains, and accrues deferred tax on unrealised profits on

Investrment properties not yet sold

Oon 1 Apnil 2013, the UK corporation tax rate reduced from 249% to 23% The Finance Act 2013 enacted further rate reductions to 219 from 1 Apni 2014

and 10 20% from 1 Apnil 2015

The deferred tax balances are required by Accounting Standards to be stated at the enacted rate of 209% (2012 23%) This requirement gives rise to an
adjustment which restates the deferred tax habilities that would arise on a future sale of Grosvenor’s assets

In 2013, the effective tax rate 15 27 6% (2012 24 3%) before the deferred tax adjustment referred ta above This adjustment had a 13 2% (2012
restated 10 4%} impact on reducing the effective rate this year to 14 4% (2012 restated 13 99%) as iliustrated in the recancihation of effective tax rate

abhove
19 Property assets

The table below analyses the Group s interests in property assets on a proportional basis, including the Group’s share of property assets 1n joint

ventures and associates
2013 2012 {restated)
£m £m
Investment property - Group 3,190.1 29616
- Share of jomnt ventures 2,111.2 2,157 2
Investment properties under development - Graup 158.9 928
- Share cf joint ventures 42.7 912
Trading properties -Group 1249 294 8
- Share of joint veniures 177.2 151 2
Other financial assets* 339 68
Total property assets 58389 5,825 6
*Qther financial assets included In praperty assets relate to equity and debt investments In property companies
20 Investment property
Comp'eted property Under development
Freehold Leasehold Tatal Freehold Leasehold Total Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At January 2012 (restated) B221 18987 27208 10 822 832 2,804 0
ACquIsItions 238 14 4 382 - - - 38.2
Costs capitalised 36 123 i59 - 250 250 40.9
Disposals (247 (573) (82 () - - - (82.0)
Revaluation gains 429 2433 286 2 - - - 286.2
Transfer frem redevelopment prejects - 153 153 - {15 3} (15 3) -
Transter from trading properttes 01 - 01 - - - 01
Exchange movements (28 8) (41 (329 - 01 en (33.0)
At 31 December 2012 (restated) 8390 21226 29616 10 918 928 3,054 4
Acquisitions 44 2 3124 3566 261 - 261 3827
Costs capitalised 27 299 326 70 340 410 736
Disposals (2621) (144 9) {407 O) - - - {407.0)
Revaluatton gains 368 264 0 3008 (31) 176 85 3093
Transfer from redevelopment projects [EB)] 132 g1 05 (S 6) [CRY] -
Transter from trading properties (15 B) - (15 8) 01 - 01 {15.7)
Exchange movements (34 7) [VER )] (47 8) (05) - {05) (48.3)
At 31 December 2013 606 0 25841 31901 251 1338 1589 3,349.0
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20 Investment property continued

Investment properties were valued at 31 December 2013 by independent external valuers on the basts of market value in accordance with generally
accepted international valuation standards Valuations were performed as follows

£m

Britain & treland Freehold DTZ Chartered Surveyors 912
Freehold CB richard Ellis, Chartered Surveyors 7.2

Long leasehold DTZ Debenham Tie Leung, Chartered Surveyors 2,546.9

Amernicas Freehold Cushman & Wakefield Le Page Chartered Surveyors 272 4
Freehold Altus Group Research valuation and advisory 208.0

Asia Pacific Freehold Tantzawa 50GO Apprajsal Co Ltd 17.3
Long leasehold Daiwa Reai Es{ate Appraisal Co Lid 108

Long leasehold Sawtlls Valuation & Professtonal Services Lirited 167

Long Ieasehold DTZ Debenham Tie Leung, Chartered Surveyors 810

Freehold Directors valuation 425

Indirect investments Freehoid Cushman & wakefield Le Page, Chartered Surveyors 350
3,339 0

The historical cost of the Group's investment properties was £1,104 8m (2012 £1,247 2m)

The carrying value of investment properties includes capitalised interest of €6 9m (2012 £4 7m)

At 31 December 2013, investment properties with a carrying amount of £1,600 ém were pledged as security for bank loans (2012 £1,590 2m)
Included 1n the above are investment properties available for-sale of £4 2m (2012 £170 5m)

Fair value measurement

The portfobo 15 valued on an annual basis by independent and quahfied valuers on a fair value basis wn accordance with generally accepted
international valuation standards For a list of the external valuers used at 31 December 2013 please see the table above The fee payable to the valuers
15 on a fixed basis

Investment properties have heen valued using ane of the following methods (1) the investment method which involves applying a yield ta renta! income
streams Inputs include yield, current rent and ERV (Estimated Rental value), () on a market comparable basis of value per square foot derived and
adgjusted from actual market transactiens, (in) tncome capitalisation where the ngrmalised net operating income generated by the property 15 divided
by the capitalisation {discount) rate, or (v} discounted cash flow method which involves the projection of a series of cash flows {the duration of the cash
flow and specific tumings of inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease renewal and re-letting, redevelopment or
refurbishment), to which an appropriate, market-derived discount rate 1s applied to establish the present value of the income stream Development
properties are valued using a residual method which involves vatuing the completed investment property using an investment or comparable market
method and deducting estimated costs to complete

Valuation reports are based on both information provided by the Group e g current rents and lease terms which 15 derived from the companies’
financial and property management systems and Is subject to the Group's overall control environment, and assumptions apphed by the valuerse g
ERvVs and yields These assumptions are based on market observation and the valuers’ professional judgement The 2013 fair value represents the
highest and best use of the properties
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The following table shows an analysis of the fair values of investment property recognised in the balance sheet by class of asset

Fair value  Valuation/Fv 2013 Valuation/FV 2012 AVErage property Average property
Class of property hlerarchy £m £m Valuation technique Vatuation inputs 2013 2m2
GBI - Office Level 3 8576 7250 weighted average ERV psf £96 psf £54 psf
investment method and ERV range psf £9-£119 psf £8-§114 psf
market comparable
method weighted average Eq vld 4 7% 47%
Equivalent yield range 35%-7 5% 36%-7 4%
GBI - Retail Level 3 4789 3192 weighted average ERV psf £49 psf £38 psf
tnvestment method and gy range pof £12-6155 psf  £10-E133 psé
market comparable
method Werghted average Eq yld 5 2% 5 8%
Equivalent yield range 36%-75% 38%-775%
Investment method and ~ Average rev'n capital
GBI - Residential Level 3 11956 11266 market comparable value psf £1 287 psf £1 171 psf
method Capital value range psf £950-£3 300 £875-£3 250
GBI - Investment properties Level 3 1534 928 ERV range psf £51-£91 psf €45-£83 psi
Resrdual appreach
under development Exit yield 4 9% 4 9%
weighted average
GA - Office Level 3 626 232 capitalisation rate 71% 5 6%
Discounted cash flow
Wweighted average
discount rate 83% 7 89
Weighted average
GA - Retall Level 3 174 1 2169 capitalisation rate 5 0% 47%
Miscounted cash flow
Wweighted average
discount rate 71% 6 9%
weighted average
QA - Residential Level! 3 1577 1511 capitalisation rate 4 7% 4 7%
Discounted cash flow
weighted average
discount rate 6 8% 71%
weighted average
GA - Indusinal* Level 3 860 855 capitakisation rate 5 7% 5 4%
Discounted cash flow
Weighted average
discount rate 6 8% 71%
Weighted average passing
GASIA - Office Level 3 108 4 134 rents psf £28 psf £50 psf
weighted average ERV psf €35 psf £43 psf
Investment method and  Weighted average running
market comparable yielg 5 9% 7 5%
method Wweighted average
reversicnary yield 7 5% 6 5%
Weighted average passing
GASIA - Residential Level 3 99 634 rents psf £45 psf £20 psf
weighted average ERV psf £4] psf £22 psf
investment method and  Weighted average running
market comparable yeld 6 5% 59%
method Weighted average
reversionary yield &50% & 2%
weighted average passing
Indirect inwestments Level 3 350 346 rents psf £57 psf £55 psf
Eurgpe Income capiahsation Weighted average
reversionary yield 7 0% 7 2%
Capitahsation rate range 6 8%-7 5% 6 8%-7 5%
Indirect investments Level 3 - 2382 Properties disposed of
Australia during the year
Total 3389.2 30899
The table above includes
property classed in Gther
Property, Plant and Equipment 402 355

*Includes property under development of £5 5m {2012 £all)

Class of property- The portfolio consists of a vaniety of uses often within the same building. The class of property shown 15 usually based upen the

predominant use by income
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Fair vatue hierarchy:

Level 1 fair values derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets/habilities

Level 2 fair values derived from observable inputs other than quoted prices

Level 3 far vatues derived from valuation technigues that include inputs that are not based on observable data

There were no transfers between levels during the year
valuation technigue; There were no changes in the valuatian technigues during the year

Valuation inputs: The portfolio contains a mix of different lease tenure types These cansist of market rented (properties let at a market rent which is
reviewed periodically), geared rented (properttes let an long leases which pay only a percentage of the market rent which 1s reviewed peniadically) or
ground rented {properties which are let on long |eases at low fixed ground rents) Properties may contain a mix of these tenure types The average
rents/ERVs referred to above 1gnore properties which have a tenure type which s completely ground rented as these can distort the averages

The range of inputs within a class of property has been stated for GBI due to the large and diverse nature of the portfolio of properties
Sensitivity to significant changes in unobservable inputs

Rents and ERVs have a direct relationship to valuation, while yield has an inverse relationship Estimated costs of a development project will inversely
affect the valuation of development properties There are interrelaticnships between all these unobservable inputs as they are determined by market
conditions The existence of an increase in mare than one unobservable input would be to magnify the impact on the valuation The impact on the
valuation will be mitigated by the interrelationship of two unobservable inputs moving 1n directions which have an opposite impact on value e g. an
increase n rent may be offset by an increase in yield, resulting in no net impact on the valuation
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21 Other property, plant and equipment

2013
Fixtures
Land and Leasehold Cama?‘udrﬂ andhrll:glgi
buildings Improvements eguipment vehicles Total
£m tm im £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2013 3_"é 66 137 99 65.8
Additions - 12 10 23 45
Disposals - {02) o7 03 (1.2)
Revaluation gains 47 - - - 47
At 31 December 2013 403 76 140 119 73.8
Depreciation
At 1 fanuary 2013 {01 61) 49) 61 17.2)
Deprecsaticn charge for the year - (02 {15) {10} 27)
Disposals - 01 o7 - 08
At 31 December 2013 01 {62) 57) 71 (191)
carrying amount
At 1 January 2013 355 05 88 38 48.6
At 31 December 2013 402 14 83 48 54 7
2012
Computer Flﬁ#lrnegss
h‘m :lr;s’ m pr:?esr:';g‘g equsgrrl;dem anserp %g; Total
£m m &m £m em
Cost
AL 1 lanuary 2012 327 &4 77 g4 562
Additions - 02 63 09 74
Dispasals (07) - 03) (0 4) (14)
Revaluation gains 36 - - - 36
At 31 December 2012 356 66 137 9¢ 65 8
Depreciation
At 1 lanuary 2012 01 (5 8) {45) {52 (156}
Depreciation charge for the year - {03) {07 10} (20)
Disposals - - 03 Ll 04
At 31 December 2012 on (61) {45} 61 17 2
Carrying amount
At 1 fanuary 2012 326 Q6 32 42 406
At 31 December 2012 iS5 05 88 38 486

Land and bulldings are freehold and were vatued at 31 December 2013 by independent valuers DTZ Debenham Tie Leung, Chartered Surveyors, on the

basis of fair value In accordance with the Appraisal and valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyars
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21 Other property, plant and equipment continued

The historical cost of the Group s revalued land and buildings above at 31 December 2013 was £12 5m (2012 €12 5m)
The carrying value of freehold land and buildings includes capitalised mterest of €nil (2012 €nti)
At 31 December 2013, land and bwildings with a carrying value of £nil were pledged as security for bank loans (2012 £mil)

22 Investments in subsidianes

Company
Shares
atcost
£m
At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 1,358.4

At 31 December 2013, the Group had the following principal investrnents in subsidiaries

Intermediate holding companies

Grosvenor Estate Holdings**

Grosvenor tnvestments UK Ltd

Grosvenor Fund Management Limited

Grosvenor Limited

Grosvenor Americas Corporation (Canada)

Grosvenor Americas USA Inc (USA)

Grosvenor USA Limited (USA}

Grosvenor tnternational SA (Luxembourg)”

Grasvenor Internatianal Investments SARL {Luxembourg)
Grosvenor Continental Europe Holdings SA (Luxembourg)
Grosvenor First European Property Investments SA (Luxembourg)'
Grosvenar Asta Pacific Limited (Hong Kong)

Financing
Grasvenor Group Finance Company™
Grasvenor UK Finance Pl¢

Regulated entities

Grasvenor Fund Management tnc (US)
Grosvengr Fund Management Japan Ltd (Japan)
Grosvenor Jnvestment Management Ltd

*Unhmited company
¥1009% of preferance shares are alse owned
177 55% owned

All the above compamies except Grosvenor Estate Holdings are indirectly owned All companies are wholly-owned and incorporated i Great Britain

except where indicated Except as disclosed above, all interests are in the form of ordinary shares

The above represent the Group’s material subsidiary undertakings A full list of all subsidary undertakings is available on request
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23 fnvestments in joint ventures and associates

2013
Proprietary assets Direct Propiistary assets  Indireci
b
B‘Ilrleallga&u Americas Patlstll: Managerfx“er:-g 2::::: Gru:\;:g::;uer;% alllxa;‘:!; Total
£m £m £m im m im £m £m
Share of profit from joint ventures and
associates
Gross rental income 05 179 155 292 127 3 01 - 190.5
Property outgoings {03) {63) (3 4) {76) (54 1) ©n - (71 8)
Net rental ncome 02 s 121 216 732 - - 1us?
Fees and other income/{expenses} - - (08) 09 306 0 - 29.5
Net gains/{losses) on trading properties 287 26 03 Q4 (4 6) - - 27.4
Administrative expenses (05) 02 {03) (32 (291) an - {35 0)
Net financing costs {14) (40) {22) 87) (216) - - (379)
Revenue profit/(loss} 270 100 91 92 485 1 - 1027
Net gains/(lesses) on revatyation
and sale of investment properties 10 157 137 140 (39 3) - - 5.1
Net (losses)/gains an ather investments ©on - - 20 - - - 1.9
Impairment of gaadwill - - - - - - - -
Derivative fair value adjustments - 05 - o1 - - - 06
profit/(loss) before tax 279 262 228 253 52 {11} - 110.3
Current tax on [(0})] {08) 02 (50) - - (6.2)
Deferred tax - - 04 22 07 - - L1
Non-controfling interest - - - - (20} - - (2 0)
278 261 216 273 15 {11} - 103.2
Share of assets and lfabilities
RNon Cuirent asseis
- investment properties 37 2235 2695 446 G 1164 2 34 - 2,112
- Investment properiies under development - - - - 427 - - 427
- other 02 - - 17 407 01t - 427
Current assets
- ash 52 55 144 216 807 22 - 1316
- trading properties 102 4 70 532 146 - - - 177 2
- other 124 07 34 4] 599 12 - 817
Nen-current habilities (352 67 6) {142 3) (243 9) (901 0) (1 8) - (1,391 8)
Current habilities {275) (6 8) 87 (290} (i58 2) (10) - (231.2)
Net assets 622 1633 185 5 2160 3290 41 - 964.1
Borrowings Included tn habilities (347) (70 4) (138 6) {249 9) {582 3) 17 - {1,077.6)

Included tn Sonae Sterra are investment properties and tvestment properties under development of £593 2m to which the uncertainty explained in
Note 1{u) vi relates Net gains/(Josses) on revaluation and sale of investment properties in Sonae Sterra comprises gains of £30 6ém and losses of

£699m
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23 investments in joint ventures continued

2012
Proprietary assets Direct Praprietary assets - indirect
Maraged by
Br| lr‘:Ilenn: Americas S’a:sll:g G'mg:"iﬁ ?::7: Gm::r;r:;uer::dl al loca?eoé Total
£m £m g&m £ Em £Em €m m
Share of profit from joint ventures
Grass rental income 08 175 149 376 1026 a2 - 1735
Property Qutgaings {05) (60) (31) (10 2) (26 1) on - (46 O}
Net rental income 03 115 118 273 765 01 - 1275
Fees and other income/(expenses) 03 - - (0 5) 186 o1 - 183
Net gains/(losses) an trading properties 130 au 94 9.0 13 Q) - - 183
Admunistrative expenses 02 02 (03) (37 (22 6) 08 - (27 8)
Net financing costs (15) 42 (25) (1 9) 221 (0D - (423)
Revenue profit/{loss) 119 70 184 202 374 09 - 940
Net (losses)/gains an revalyation
ant sale of Investment properties - 141 255 (150) (517) - - (271)
Net losses on other Investments on - - a9 - - 03 (08)
!mpairment of goodwtil - - - 09 - - - [GR2)]
Derivative fair value adjustments (01 - - 01 - - - -
Profit/{loss) before tax nz 211 439 40 (143 (09} 03 652
Current tax - (03) (23) (23) {50 - - (139}
Deferred tax - - (0 4) 31 49 - - 76
Non contrelling interest - - - 01 09 - - o4
nz 208 412 49 {18 9) (09 03 585
Share of assets and llabilities
Non current assets
- Investment properties - 2150 2691 518 4 11510 37 - 21572
- Investment praperties under development - - - - 912 - - 912
- other 02 - - 10 543 01 - 556
Current assets -
- £ash 69 25 144 312 1019 42 - 1612
- trading properies 1310 176 355 71 - - - 1912
- other 111 08 312 112 650 10 - 1203
Non current liabilities (43 8} (62 4) {139 7} (278 3) (945 8) (22) - (14722)
Current labilities 372) 199 (22Q} (44 3) (126 4) 0 8) - {300 6)
Net assets 682 153 6 1885 246 4 3412 60 - 1,0039
Borrowings included in iabilifies (43 4} {78 0} (137 1) (288 5) (615 2) (21) - (1,164 3)
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23 Investments n joint ventures continued

At 31 December 2013, the Group had the following principal interests in joint ventures which are accounted for on the basis explained in Note 1

Principal activities

Country of
incorporation/registratisn

Elfecive interest

Groug share of net assets
&m

Britain & ireland

GC Bankside LLP Property development Ergland and Wales 50 0% 58
Neo Investments LLP Property development England and Wales 12 5% 30
Barkhill Limited Property development Repubtic of Ireland 50 0% 55
The Grouss Residentiat investment Partnership Prcperty development Scotland 318% S1
Alpha Place Developments LLP Property development England and wales 33 0% 150
Americas

loint ventures with BBCAF Inc Property Investment United States of America 50 0%/25 0% 1229
lomt ventures with the Getty Famely Trust Property investment United States of America 50 0% 16
Art Hill Management Property investment United States of America 48 5% 08
Joint ventures with PSP and A TRF Property investment United States of America 51 0% 206
Toint ventures with JBG Companies Property investment United States of America 50 0% [0X]
loint ventures with Manitoba, DB Property investment Canada 30 0% 69
Asia Pacific

Richly Leader Limited Property Investment Hong Kong 50 0% 148 4
Imperat Time Limited Property development Hong Kang 20 0% 12 4
GT3 Tokutel Mokutel Kaisya Property investment Japan 50 0% 54
Grosvenor Park Partners Limited Property development Cayman Islands 40 8% 85
Azabu Tower Tokuter Mokuteki Kaisya Property development Japan 50 0% 99
Indirect investments

Grosvenor London Office Fund Property mvestment England and Wales 34 3% 550
Grosveror Residential Investment Fund Property mvestment England and wales 50 0% 21
Grosvenor Liverpool Fund Property investment England and Wates 19 6% 663
GEMQCA. Inc Property investment United States of America 20 0% 149
Shmael US Real Estate Fund Property investment United States of America 10 0% 06
Grosvenor Residential tnvestment Partners Property investment United States of America 25 0% 36
us Healthcare venture Property investment United States of America 50% 22
Grosvenar Vega - China Retall Fund Property investment Cayman Islands 10 2% 84
Grosvenor Office Retall Fund Property investment lapan 7 6% 31
Grosvenor Retall Euxropean Properties Property investment Luxernbourg 14 0%* 33
Grosvenor Eurgpean Retail Partnership Property Investment Luxembourg 5 0% 13
o Investments Limited Property Investment England and Wales 50 1% 93
Sonae Sierra SGPS SA Property investment and development  Portugal 50 0%* 3303

= Certain investments 4n Joint ventures in Continental Europe are controlled by Gresvener First European Property investmants SA (GFEPI) whichis 77 5% ownead by the Group The effectve
Interest above intludes the intesests of the non cantralling Investors in GFEPI

The finanoial statements include, on an equity accounted basis, the results and financial position of the Group s interests 1n UK limited partnerships

Accordingly, advantage has been taken of the exemptions provided by Regulation 7 of the Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008, which dispenses

with the requirement for those parinerships to file accounts with Companies House
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24 Gther financial assets

2013

2012 (restated)
£m

£m
Non-current assets
Equity shares 77 132
Finance lease recervables 74 75
Mezzanmne joans 8.7 92
Other financial assets 17.7 165
Non current pertion of currency swaps 2.1 695
43.6 529
Current assets
Mezzamine loans 6.5 32
Current portion of currency swaps 4.3 b6
108 98

Included in the abave are property-related financial assets of £34 Om (2012 £36 8m)

Equity shares refate to ISPT Grosvenar International Property Trust, a property investment vehicle incorporated in Austraha (n which the Group has a
9 9% effective nterest

Included in finance lease recewvables 1s £mif (2012 restated £nil} of unguaranteed residual value
Finance lease receivables in respect of rents on leasehold properties are receivable as foliows

Mimmum Unearned
fease payments hinance income Pringgal
£m £m £m
Less than one year 09 09 -
Between one and five years 36 35 [¢]]
More than five years 835 462 73
580 506 74

Mezzanine loans

Mezzanine loans are loans provided to residential developers in the USA and Canada A return is earned comprising fixed rate interest and a share of
the profits on completion of the development
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25 Intangible assets

2013
Qther
Goodwill m[a;sgslteﬂtg Total
£m £m £m
Cost
Al 1 January 2013 84 18 10.0
Additrons 03 - 0.3
Exchange movements 0¢e - 0.2
At 31 December 2013 BS 16 10.5
Amortisation/imparment
At 1 January 2013 (44) (16} {6 0)
Impairment {44) - (4.4)
Exchange movements [(3)] - (0.1)
At 31 December 2013 89 (16) (10 5)
Carrying amount
At 1 January 2013 40 - 4.0
At 31 December 2013 - - -
2012
Other
Goocwill lma:igltg Tota
£ £m £m

Cost
At 1 lanuary 2012 86 17 103
Exchange movements 02 on 03
At 31 December 2012 84 16 100
Amortisation/impairment
At 1 January 2012 {45 (17) (62)
Exchange movements [t 01 oz
At 31 December 2012 (4 4) {16) 60)
carrying amount
At 1 lanuary 2012 4] - 41
At 31 December 2012 40 - 40
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26 Deferred tax assets and habilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and habilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilittes are attributable to the follawing items

013 2012 {restated}

AsSats Liabllitles Net Assets Liabilities Net

£&m £m fm £&m £m £&m

Investmeant preperty - contingent gans 149 (474.3) {459.4) 163 (452 6) (4363)
Investment property - deferred gains 119 (s 1 (106.2) 167 (122 9) (106 2)
Other property plant and equipment 02 (2.8) {7 6) 01 (9 4) (93)
Qther financial assets - (0.2) 0.2) - {01) Q1)
Interest-bearing legns and borrowings 2.5 (0.8) 1.7 58 3] 45
Employee benefits 151 (4.8) 10.3 165 (5 6) 109
Provisions 09 - 09 i5 - 15
Qtheritems 2.2 7.7} 45 71 (8 2 1y
Tax value and loss carry forwards recognised 0.6 - 06 34 - 34
Tax (liabilities)/assets 58.3 (613.7) {555 4) 674 (600 1) (5327)

Temporary differences, including those from unremitted earrings, can arise on the Group'sinvestments in subsidianies and Jointly controlled entities
Deferred tax 15 not recegmised on these as the Group is able to control their reversal and itis probable they will not reverse in the foreseeable future
At 31 December 2013, the total of these temporary differences was £445 5m (2012 £435 8m) and the potential tax effect was £26 1m (2012 £259m),
accruing privcipally as a result of dividend withholding taxes levied by averseas tax jurisdictions

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

012

2012

£m im

Tax losses 47 4 472
Movement in temporary differences during the year

1 Januaws(?g?::et?; Rercgnised Recogrused Exchange n m::

2013 iR INcome n equity movement ACQuISIions

£m £m tm £m £m £m

Investment property - contingeni gains (436 3) (14 1) [{¢]}] 03 (92 (459 4)

Investment property - deferred gains (E06 2) (23) - 46 {213) (106.2)

Other property, plant and equipment (53} 17 - - - (76)

Qther frnancial assets o [{]}} - - ~ 0.2)

Interest-bearmg 'oans and borrowings 45 16 12 - - 17

Employee benefits 109 0¢s (39 - 24 103

Provisions 15 - - - 06) 0.9

Qther items (11) 57 - - on 45

Tax value and loss carry forwards recognised 4 (28) - - - ]

Tax {(liabilities)/assets (5327) (12 6) (52 49 (9 8) (555 4)
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27 Trading properties

013 012
£€m £m
Al 1 January 294.8 245 2
Agditions 627 1316
Capiiahised interest 5.6 43
Disposals (248 9) (76 9)
Provisign for impatrment 17 57
Transfer from/(to} investment properties 15.8 {01)
Transfer to development properties (0.1) -
Exchange movements (313) {36)
124 9 294 8

At 31 December 2013, trading properties with a carrying value of £23 Om were pledged as security for bank loans (2012 €41 2m)

28 Trade and other receivables
Group Company

2013 01 2013 2012
£&m £m im &m
Trade recevables 352 298 - -
Recervables due from subsidiaries - - 13.9 1379
Receivables due from joint ventures 61.0 806 - -
QOther recevables 338 651 - -
Prepayments 58 54 - -
Accrued Income 15.4 194 - -
151.2 2003 13.9 1379

Trade recevables are shown net of allowances for bad debts of £2 7m (2012 £2 8m) Included in the above are receivables due after maore than one

year {otalling €nit (2012 £0 1m)
29 Cash and cash equrvalents

2013

2012

£m £m
Bank balances 140 6 155
Cash deposits 376 0 1226
Cash and cash equivalents 516.6 23B 4
Bank overdrafis - -
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 516 6 238 4

The amount of cash and cash equivalents not avaitable for use by the Group totals €17 Om (2012 £80 7m). of which £nil (2012 ©mil) has been pledged as

collateral
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30 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

2013

2012

£m €m

Non-current habilities
Secured bank loans 254 8 2435
unsecured bank loans 77.6 510
Secured bond 1ssues 2020 2020
Unsecured bond Issues 267.5 2675
Finance lease liabilities 13 13
Loan from non-controlling interests in subsidiartes 33 41
8065 769 4

Current lrabilities

Current portion of secured bank foans 193 202
Current portien of unsecured bank loans - 02
Preference shares - 291
19.3 495

The bank loans and secured bonds are secured over investment properties with a carrying value of £1,600 6m (2012 £1,590 2m), land and builldings
with a carrying value of £mil (2012 £mit) and trading properties with a carrying value of £23 0m (2012 £412m) Included in secured bond 1ssues 1s £1 9m

(2012 £2 2m) of net un-amortised premium
Finance lease liabilities

Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows

2013 2012

Minimum Minimum

lease lease
payments Interest Principal gayments Interest Principal
£m £m Em £m m £m
Less than one year 0.3 03 - 03 03 -
Between one and five years 13 13 - 13 13 -
More than five years 73.6 723 13 739 726 13
75.2 739 13 795 74 2 13
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31 Financial instruments

Capital risk management

The capital structure of the Group compnises debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 30, cash and cash equivalents disclosed in Note 26,
and equity, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in Notes 37 and 38

The Group manages its capital to optimise the allocation cof equity between the Operating Companies and indirect investments and to enable them to
meet their short, medium and long-term targets Internal gearing and mterest cover kmits are set for the Group and each Operating Company Group
gearing at the year end 1s 8 9% (2012 18 9%)

Categories of financial instruments and their fair values ‘

2013 ‘
Available for sale Financal assets at Total
Laans and recevables Held for trading SecLrives anrortised cost arying amount Falr value
&m fm fm im €m Em
Financial assets
Equity shares - - 77 - 7.7 77
Finance lease receivable 74 - - - 7.4 79
Mezzanine lgans (curreni and non-current) 146 06 - - 15.2 152
Other financiat assets - - 177 - 17.7 17.7
Trade and other recevablas 610 - - 690 130.0 130.0
Tax receivable - - - 35 3.5 35
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 5166 516 &6 516 &

Total financial assets 830 06 54 5891 698.1 698.6
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31 Financial instruments continued

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured at fair value subsequent te initial recognition, grovped according to

the degree to which the fair value Is derived from observable data

Finangial hatilitres Total
at amortised co:: amying minml Falr 'l'llil:;
Financial liabilities.
Fixed rate loans
Sterhing unsecured bond 2019 (525) (52 5) {66 5)
Sterling unsecured bend 2022 (59 8) (59.8) (577)
Sterling secured bond 2026 (201 9) (201 9) (234 7)
Sterling unsecured bond 2031 (94 6) {94 6) {110.8)
Sterhing secured mortgage 2034 (50 Q) (50 0) (94.9)
Sterling unsecured bond 2037 {26 9) {29.9) 321)
Steriing unsecured bond 2041 (29 &) (29.6) {36.5)
Sterling fixed rate (36) (3.6) (1.6)
US Dollars (44 4) (44 3) (43 4)
Canadian Dollars {32 6) (32 6) (351)
Japanese Yen (297) 297) 297)
Total fixed rate loans (628 6) (628 6) (745 0)
Fleating rate loans
Sterling (75 1) {751) (751)
US Dollars (38 6) {38 6) (38 6)
Canadian Doliars )] 9.7) on
Hong Kong Dollars {40 4) (40.4) (40.4)
japanese Yen (6 8) {6.8) (68)
Euras (17 8} (17.8) (17.8)
Australian Daollars - - -
Tota! floating rate loans (188 4) (188.4) (188 4)
Finance lease llabilities (13) (1.3) (13)
Loans frem non controlling interests in subsidiaries (33) (33) (3.3)
Preference shares - - -
Tax payable 417) (417) {a17)
Trade and other payables (98 5) (58.5) (58 5)
Total financial liabilities (521 B) {921.8) (1,038.2)
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31 Financial tnstruments continued

TR amvesnca e
£m £m £m
Derivatives
Interest rate swaps
US Daltars 3n {3.7) 3.7
Hong Kang Dollars {05) {0.5} (0.5)
Euros - - -
Australian Dollars - - -
Total Interest rate swaps (42) (4.2) {4.2)
Currency swaps
US Dollars 05 0.5 0.5
Japanese Yen 11 11 11
Euros 48 4.8 4.8
Australian Dollars - - -
Total currency swaps 64 64 64
22 2.2 2.2

Total derivatives

Currency swaps are against Sterling unless stated otherwise

The table betow prowides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured at fair value subsequent to initial recognition, grouped according to

the degree to which the fair value 1s derived from abservabte data
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31 Fnancial instruments continued

2013
Available-for-sale financial assets
Equity shares - - 77 17
Other 177 - - 177
Financial assets held for trading
Mezzanine loan investments - - 06 a6
Dervatives - 6.4 - 64
Total financial assets 177 64 8.3 324
Financial liamhties held for trading
Derivatives - (42) - (42)
Total financial liabiitres - (4.2) - (4.2)

Level 1 fair values derived from guoted prices in active markets for 1dentical assets/habililes
Level 2 fair values derived from observable inputs other than quated prices

Level 3 fair values derived from valuation technigues that include inputs that are not based on cbservable data

The fair values of financial assets and liabtlities are determined as follows

—  Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicatle yield curves derived

from quoted interest rates

- The farr vatue of financial assets and habilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active markets 1s determined with reference to

quoted market prices

—  The farr value of other financial assets and habiltties 1s determined tn accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted

cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions

2012 {restated)
Total
Loans and Hetd far Avatlable for sate Financial assets carrying Fair
recevables trading SEcurities at amortised cost amaunt value
£m £m £m £m im Em
Financial assets-
Equity shares - - 132 - 132 132
Finance lease receivable 75 - - - 75 94
Mezzanine loans {current and non-current) 122 0z - - 124 124
Other financial assets - - 16 & - 165 165
Trade and other recelvables BGC S - - 949 1755 1755
Tax recevable - - - 56 56 56
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 238 4 2384 2384
Total financial assets 1003 02 297 3389 4691 4710

Currency swaps are against sterling unless stated otherwise
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31 Financial instruments continued

Financal habdities Tatal
2012 2t arortised c;:: catrying ammérr: Fair Va;:l:;
Financial liabiles:
Fixed rate loans
Sterling unsecured bond 2019 (s25) {525) (65 2)
Sterling unsecured bond 2022 (601 (60 1) {50 8)
Sterling secured bond 2026 (202 0) (202 0} (234 4)
Sterling unsecured bond 2031 (95 5) (95 5) (84 7)
Sterling secured mortgage 2034 (500) (50 0) (50 0)
Sterling unsecured band 2037 (301 (301) (25 6)
Sterling unsecured bond 2041 (306) (30 6) (26 5)
us Dollars (46 5) (46 5) {50 5)
Canadian Dollars (36 5) (36 9) (40 4)
lapanese Yen (8 4) (84) (8 4)
Total fixed rate loans (612 2) {612 2) (636 9)
Floating rate loans
LS Dollars {840) (84 0) (84 0}
Canadian Da'lars (33 (33) (33)
Euros (395) (395) {395
Austratizn Dollars (35 5) (355) (35 5)
Total floating rate loans (162 3) (162 3) (162 3)
Finance lease hzbilities (13) {13 {13)
Loans from nen controlling interests in subsidiaries (41} (41) (41)
Preference shares {291) (291) (291
Tax payable {177 azn (177)
Trade and other payables 1107 (1107) (110 7)

Total financial habilities (937 4) (937 4) (962 1)
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31 Financial instruments continued

Held {or

Total

Fair

2012 Kraclir:ra| carnying ammérr;lt 'ajil:':
Derivatives
Interest rate swaps
US Dallars (70} (70) (70)
Heng Kang Dollars (15) {15) 19
Euros (D2) 02 02)
Australian Dollars (12) {12} (12)
Total interest rate swaps o9 99 99)
currency swaps
US Dollars 02 02 02
lapanese Yen 18 18 18
Euraos 105 105 105
Australian Dollars 06 06 06
Total currency swaps 131 131 131
Total derivatives 32 32 32
Level 1 fair values derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets/habilities
Leve! 2 fair values denived from observable (nputs other than quoted prices.
Level 3 fair values denved from valuation techniques that include inputs that are not based on cbservable data
2012
Lm[\ “3 Leves‘:’: Ltveé ; tsit:na
Available-for-sale financial assets
Equity shares 31 101 - 132
Qther 152 13 - 165
Financial assets held for trading
Mezzanine loan investments - - Q2 L2
Denvatives - i31 - 131
Total financial assets 183 245 02 430
Financial liabilities held for trading
Denvatives - (99) - 99
Total financial liabilities - 99 - o9

The fair values of financial assets and habilmes are determined as follows

— Interest rate swaps are measured at the present vatue of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the appiitable yield curves dernved

from quoted interest rates

—  The fair value of financial assets and liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active markets 1s determined with reference to

quoted market prices

- The far value of other finanoial assets and irabihties 1s determined in accordance with generally accepted prniping models based on tiscounted

cash tlow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions
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31 Financial instruments continued

Financial risk management

The Group has a decentralised treasury management operating structure, co-ordinated through a Group treasury function, which monitors and
manages the financial nsks relating to the Group s operations and seeks o maximise the efficiency of borrowings and cash deposits throughout the
Group Treasury palicres, approved by the Board, are

—  to manage wholly-owned treasury operatigns in a co-ordinated manner, debt for joint ventures and funds s raised at joint venture and fund level
but 1s managed within the co-ordinated approach,

- toensure sufficient committed loan facilities to support anticipated business requirements as they anse,
— 1o ensure that the Group s debt can be supported from maintainable cash flow through clear internal guidelines,

- to manage interest rate exposure with a combination of fixed rate debt and interest rate swaps so that a minimum of 60% of borrowings are at
fixed interest rates for the next three years,

—~  not to hedge long-term net asset positions held 1n foreign currencies absent abnormal circumstances, and
—  toinvest short-term cash with approved institutions within imits agreed by the Board

Transactions i financial instruments inctuding dervatives are either governed by speciftc delegations to Operating Cempany boards or have prior
Board approval The Greup daes nat enter into any treasury positions for purely speculative purposes Detalled treasury reports are produced on a
monthly basis with consalidated treasury risk reports presented to the Board Risks include market nsk {interest rates, currency and pricing), credit risk
and hquidity risk

Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate movements i1s controlled through the use of a mixture of ficating and fixed rate debt and interest rate dervatives, to achieve
a balanced interest rate profile to ensure that a minrmum level of barrowings are at fixed interest rates for the next three years The interest rate
profile 15 reviewed by the Group on a monthly basis
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31 Financial instruments continued
The Group s exposure to interest rates on financial assets and finanaizl iabihities 1s analysed below

2013

Fixed interest rate

Non interest

Effective interest rate Floating interestrate «1lyear § Syears »Syears bearmg Total
% £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets.
Equity shares n/a - - - - 77 7.7
Finance lease recevable 101 - - - 74 7.4
Mezzanine loans (current and non-current) 80 - 62 90 - - 15.2
Other financial assets &0 60 - - - 17 17.7
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments and accrued sncome) 17 115 21 - - 1164 130.0
Tax recevable n/a - - - - 35 a5
Cash and cash equivalents 06 488 0 - 286 5166
Total financial assets 5055 83 90 74 167 6981
Financial liabilities,
Fixed rate Joans
Sterling unsecured bond 2019 84 - - - (525) - (52.5)
Sterling ensecured bond 2022 34 - - - (59 8) - {59 8)
Sterling secured bond 2026 65 - - - {2019 - (201.9)
Sterling unsecured bond 2031 56 - - - 946 - (946)
Sterling secured mortgage 2034 104 - - - (500 - (500)
Sterling unsecured bond 2037 50 - - - (299) - (299
Sterling unsecured bond 2041 61 - - - (299) - {296)
Sterling fixed rate 00 - - - (36) - (3.6)
LS Gollars fixed rate 102 - _(0s) (294 (49 - (44 4)
Canadian Dollars fixed rate 651 - n 63 (193 - _(326)
tapanese Yen fixed rate 17 - - (297 - - (297
Total fixed rate loans - (76} (654) {5556) - (628 6)
Floating rate loans fixed through interest rate swaps
US Dollars 45 - 01 03 (90) - {86)
Hong Keng Dollars 22 - - (06) - - (o6
Eurp 16 - - (178 - - 7y
Total floating rate loans fixed through interest rate swaps - 01 (18p {(90) - (270)
Floating rate loans
Sterling floating rate - 75 1) - - - - (s
US Dollars floating rate 30 (337 - - - - (337
Canadian Dollars ficating rate 35 (97 - - - - (on
Hong Kong Dollars floating rate 25 (403) - - - - (a03)
Japanese Yen floatng rate 11 (6 8) - - - - (68)
Totat floatmg rate lcans (165 &) - - - - {165 6}
Currency swaps 00 - 43 21 - -~ 6 4
Finance lease habilities 60 - - - 13) - 13
Loan from joint ventures nfa - - - - 33y 33
Tax payable nfa - - - - (417) (4L7)
Trade and gther payables (excluding deferred income and accrued expenses) n/a - - - - (585) (585}
Total financial iabilities (1656) (32) (814) (5659) (1035) (9196)

The total average cost of debt for the year ended 31 December 2013 was 5 76% (2012 6 13%)
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31 Financial instruments continued
2012 {restated)

Fixed interest rate

Ettective interest  Floating interest Nen interest
rate rate < lyear 1-5 years » Syears beartrg Total
% im iyl §m m £m £m
Financial assets.
Equity shares n/a - - - - 132 132
Finance lease recevable 101 - - - 75 - 75
Mezzanine loans (current and non current} 82 - 32 92 - - 124
Other financial assets 51 50 - 01 01 113 165
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments and accrued
Income} 71 e - - 126 1913 175 5
Tax receivable n/a - - - - 56 56
Cash and cash eguivalents 07 1266 625 - - 490 2384
Total financial assets 143 § 657 93 202 230 4 4691
Financial llabihties
Fixed rate loans
Sterling unsecured bond 2019 84 - - - (52 5) - (525}
Sterling unsecured bond 2022 34 - - - (60 1} - {60 1}
Sterhng secured bond 2026 65 - - - (2020) - (202 0)
Sterling unsecured bond 2031 56 - - - (95 5} - {95 5)
Sterling secured mortgage 2034 10 4 - - - (500) - (500)
Sterling unsecured bond 2037 50 - - - (301 - (301
Sterling unsecured bond 204 61 - - ~ {30 6) - (30 6)
US Dollars fixed rate 102 - {05) (303 (15 7) - {46 5)
Canadian Dollars fixed rate 61 - Q) (13 8) {2t 7) - (36 5)
Japanese Yen fixed rate 17 - - - {8 4) - (8 4)
Total fixed rate loans - (5) (44 1) (566 6) - (612 2)
Floating rate loans fixed through interest rate swaps
US Dollars 27 - 02) {52 3) (58) - (58 3}
Heng Kong Dollars [+1:) - (15) - - - (15)
Eurg 48 - - {17 5) - - (17 5)
Australian Dollars 41 - (137) (23 0) - - (367}
Tatal floating rate leans fixed through interest rate swaps - (15 4) (52 8) {5 8} - (114 0)
Floating rate loans
US Dolars floating rate 31 (327 - - - - (327
Canadian Bollars floating rate 34 (33) - - - - (33)
Euro flcating rate 28 (222) - - - - (22 2)
Total floating rate loans (52 8) - - - - (52 8}
Currency swaps Q0 - 66 65 - - 131
Finance lease liabilities 112 - - - (13) - (13)
Loan from jomnt ventures n/a - - - - @1 [C3Y)
Preference shares 06 (29 1) - - - - (29 1)
Tax payable n/a - - - - 177} {177
Trade and other payables (excluding deferred income and
accrued expenses) n/a - - - - (110 7) (110 7}
Total financial liabilities (873) {103 {130 4) {537 7) {132 5) (534 2)
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31 Financral instruments continued

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below )s based on the expasure 1o interest rates at the balance sheet date For floating rate habilittes and cash balances, it 1s
assumed the liability or asset at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year

If interest rates had been 0 5% higher and all other vartables were held constant, the impact on the Group’s equity would be

2013 2012

£m £m

increasef(decrease) n results for the year - interest charge 25 ce
- mark ta market of interest rate swaps 2.4 34

- tax charge 1.2) (10}

Total increase in profit and equity 38 32

Similarly, if interest rates had been 0 5% lower, then Group profit and equity would have decreased by £3 8m (2012 £3 2m)

As part of the Group s interest rate risk management, interest rate swaps exchanging floating for fixed interest with a notional principal of £33 5m
(2012 £70 7m) and a fair value hability of £3 7m (2012 £7 Om) were designated for cash flaw hedge accounting at 31 December 2013 These hedges
were highly effective during the year

Foreign currency risk

Investments outside the UK are held for the {ong term, sc it Is the Group s policy not to hedge the net investment n these regions Within each region
there 1s a certain amount of natural currency hedging as debt i1s drawn in local currency to finance local operations Short-term cash flows between
currencies are hedged by the use of foreign exchange derivatives

At the end of the year, other than that anising on its equity 1 non-UK Operating Companies, the Group has no matenal fareign exchange currency risk
as there are no matertal financial instruments denorminated in non-functional currencies

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risks arising fram its equity invesiments disclosed in Note 24 Equity investments designated as available-for-sale
are held for strategic rather than trading purposes

Equity price sensttivity
The sensitivity analysis below 15 based an the exposure to equity price risks at the balance sheet date

If equity prices had been 10% higher/iower other equity reserves would increase/decrease by £1 9m (2012 Increase/decrease by £2 5m) as a result of
changes in fair value of avaitable-for-sale shares

The Group's sensitivity 10 equity prices has not changed significantly from the prior year
Credit risk

Credit nisk refers to the nisk that a counterparty wilt default on its centractual financiat obligations resulting i financial loss to the Group The Group Is
exposed to credit risk in respect of its surplus cash deposits, undrawn committed borrowing facilities, trade recevables, mezzanine lcan investments
and loans to joint ventures

Surplus cash is deposited with major financsal institutions and 1n money market funds with credit ratings at or ahove a specified level Limits are set to
restrict the total amount of funds that can be deposited with any single counterparty

At the year end depasits were invested as follows
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31 Financial instruments continued

Standard & Poor's credit rating of institution

Total cash and cash
equivalents at 3] December

013 2012

£Em €m

AAA 254.4 891
AA+ - -
Al - -
AA- 116.2 698
A+ 393 233
A 92.7 26
A- 13.9 9 4
Other 0.1 o8
516 6 238 4

Trade recevables consist of amounts due from a large number of tenants, spread across diverse industnes and geographical areas Credit checks are
carried out before commencement of tenancies and before entering joint venture partnership agreements and continuing credit evaluation seeks to
ensure any receivables are provided for as required Trade recelvables are small relative to turnover and therefgre do not present a significant risk to
the Group Trade receivables at the year end totalled £35 2m of which £4 4m was outstanding at 1 March 2013

Mezzanine loans represent loans to developers on which Grosvenor earns interest and a share of the development profit Grosvenor makes loans to
established developers with a track record of stable performance and carnes out due divgence before committing funds In the majority of loans,
Grosvenar receives a second charge on the development property and a guarantee regarding the principal and interest

The carrying amcunt of financial assets, excluding equity investments, recorded 1n the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk on those financial assets without taking account of the value of any cellateral obtained

Liguidity risk

Grosvenor obtains financing from a number of sources, including secured lending at project level together with secured and unsecured borrowing at
the corporate level To ensure sufficient cash is available to meet operating plans, cash flow projections are marntained at Operating Company level
and are reviewed by the Group on a monthly basis in addition to facilities at Operating Company and project fevel, committed borrowing facilities are
maintained In the Holding Company at levels deemed appropriate by the Group Board

At 31 December 2013, the Group had the following drawn and undrawn committed borrowing facilities availlable

Drawn faciities Undrawn tacilities

013 2012 2013 2012

Em Em £m £m

Expiring in less than one year 64 825 333 198 3
Expiring fram ane to two years 6 220 1726 -
Expiring from two to five years 168 6 144 4 3399 5251
Expiring after more than five years 568 6 564 6 1215 -
Total B212 B135 662.3 1234

Borrowing limits are set for each Operating Company Each Operating Company and the Group produces, on a monthly basis, a medium-tarm cash
forecast under an expected and stressed scenario, the latter designed to simulate an extreme financial and market crash The Operating Companies
and the Group seek to mamntan suffiient rquidhty to sustain such a crash for at least two years

The Group also monitars 11s resilience to potentiai falls in property market values Resiience 1s defined in the glossary
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The maturity prefile of the antiopated future cash flows, including interest, refating to the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities, on an
undiscounted basis (which therefare differs from both carrying vaiue and fair vafue) 1s as follows

2013
Leans from

e 5 e TTRGE " hem raa
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Due within one year 457 29 03 - 1002 1491
From ane to two years 78 428 03 - - 1189
From twa to three years 380 203 03 - - 59.5
From three to four years 439 408 03 - - 850
From four to five years 1331 55 03 - - 1389
After five years 8914 - 737 33 - 968 4
1,228 8 123 752 33 1002 1,519.8

2012

{cans fram
rate o rate e it e otrer Total
£m em £m £m £m im
Due within one year 40 4 925 03 - 128 4 2616
From one L0 tWO years 451 164 03 - - 628
From two to three years g 182 a3 - - 1504
From three to four years 365 176 03 - - 54 4
From four to five years 44 8 01 03 - - 452
After five years 5129 56 740 41 - 996 6
11526 2104 755 41 1284 15710
The maturity profite of the Group's financial derivatives, using undiscounted cash flaws, is as follows

2013 2012
Payable Receivable Payable Receivable
£n £m £m o
Due within one year 23) 0.5 (6 0) 17
From one t0 two years 23) 0.8 36) 09
From two to three years (18) 11 (30) 09
From three te faur years {14) 10 (22 08
From four to five years {13) 1.2 {18} a9
after five years 19) 20 (35) 22

(110) 66 (20 2} 74
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32 Trade and other payables

2013 2012 {restated)
£m &m
Current habilities
Trade payables 137 155
Payables due to joint ventures 0.1 12
Other payables 44.1 66 2
Accrued expenses 921 503
Deferred income 212 207
171.2 1539
Non current habiities
Payables due to jeint ventures 0.2 78
Other payables 0.4 -
Deferred income 57.4 450
580 728
Deferred income includes £58 3m in respect of deferred lease premtum profits (2012 restated £47 6m)
33 Provisions
Development loss provision
2013 2012
m £m
At 1 January 39 34
Recognised in the year 16 19
Released in the year 1) -
Utthsed in the year (26) (14)
At 31 December 18 39

The development loss provision relates ta claims made on completed development projects These are expected to be recognised or utilised in 2014
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34 Qperating lease commitments

Leases as lessee
The amount of ease rentals charged to the income statement during the year comprised

2013 2012
£m £m
Land and budings 3.4 52
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as fallows
2013 w12
£m im
Less than qre year 09 61
Between one and five years 29 66
More than five years 33 31
71 158
Leases as lessor
Future muwmum lease payments under non-cancellable leases are as follows
2013 201z
fm £m
Less than one year 910 518
Between one and five years 2017 2454
More than five years 1,017 6 10238
1,310 4 1,3650
35 Capital commitments
2013 2012
im Em
Investment properties contracted but nat prowided 73.2 582
Development properties conracted but not pravided 66.9 150 4
1401 208 6

included In the above 1s Grosvenor's share of joint venture and associate capital commitments of £28 3m (2012 £83 9m)

36 Contingent habihities

Certain Group comparues have given performance undertakings to third parties in respect of various contractual cbhgations entered into in the

ordinary course of business
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37 Share capital

2013 2012
Number of shares m Number of shares £m

Allccated, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 5,684,877 57 5,684,877 57
Non voting ardinary shares of £1 45,479,016 455 45,479,016 455
‘A preference shares of £1 5,684,877 57 5,684,877 57
‘B preference shares of £1 21,589,624 216 45 589,624 456
78,438,394 785 102,438 394 1025

Rights of classes of shares

Profits determined by the Directors as available for distribution are to be apphied first in paying a fixed non-cumulative dividend of 12% per annum on
the amounts paid up on the ‘A’ preference shares, secondly in paying a floating coupon on the amounts paid up or deemed paid up on the 'C’
preference shares The balance of profits available for distribution are payable to the holders of the ordinary shares and non-voting ordinary shares in
proportion to the amounts pard up on their shares Holders of the 'B” preference shares are not entitled to a distnbution of profits No C preference
shares have been Issued

0n a return of the Company’s assets to Shareholders the assets are to be applied first in repaying to the holders of the “A’ preferences shares the
amounts paid up en their shares, secondly repaying to the holders of the ‘B preference shares and the holders of the *C’ preference shares the
amounts paid up or deemed pard up on therr shares The balance of the assets 1s payable to the holders of the orcinary shares and non-voting ardinary
shares tn proportion to the amounts patd up on their shares up 1o an amount of £10bn Thereafter the batance of agsets 1s payable to the holders of the
‘B preference shares, ‘C’ preference shares, ordinary shares and non-voting ordinary shares in proportion to the amounts paid up on their shares

Holders of the B' preference shares and non voting ordinary shares are not entitled to vote at general meetings of the members of the Company
except on resclutians varying or abrogating any of the special nghts cr priviieges attaching to their shares
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38 Reconcitiation of share capital and reserves

{a) Group
Nen
Share Share Transiation Other Far value Revaluaticn fletamnad controlhing Total
capitat premsm reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
£m £m Em £m m im £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2011 164 9 283 3866 1035 (14 0) 97 1,969 9 2,6493 126 & 2,775.9
Profit for the year - - - - - - 2508 250 8 49 245.9
Revaluation mgvement - - - - - 38 - 38 - 38
Fair value adjustments - - - (03 (37 - - (4 0) (0 2} (5.2)
Deferred tax - - - o4 (07) (0 8) 08 {1.1) - {L.})
Pension actuarial losses - - - - - - (12 4) (12.4) - (12 4)
Dividends - - - - - - - - 6 2) {6.2)
Non controlling shares issued by subs - - - - - - - - 3 03
Non controlhng shares acquired by subs - - - - - - - - {16} {16)
Redemption of preference shares {259 9) - - 259 - - (25 9) {25.9) - {25 9)
Exchange - - o7 - - - - 07 (50) (57)
Other movements in JV - - - - - - (4 5} {4 5) {12 (57)
Prior period adjusiment {Note 2) - - - - - - 1002 1002 - 100.2
Balance at 31 December 2011 (restated) 139 0 283 3859 1291 (18 4) 127 22789 2,955.5 107 8 3,063 3
Profit for the year - - - - - - 3126 3126 (4 5) 3081
Revaluation movement - - - - - 36 - 3.6 36
Fair value adjustments - - - 18 (18) - - 30 03 34
Deferred tax - - - (0 8) - {0 3) {15) (2 6) - {2 6)
Pension actuarial losses - - - - - - 31 3.1 - 3.1
Dividends - - - - - - (0 5} {0.5) (8 4) (8.9)
Transfer between reserves - - (43) 10 4) - - 47 {0 0) - 00)
Non-controlling shares issued by subsidiary - - - - - - - - 06 06
Non-cantrothng shares acquired by
subsidiary - - - - - - - - (27) (27
Redemption of preference shares (36 5) - - 365 - - (36 5) (36.5) - (36.5)
Exchange - - (60 5} - - - - {60.5) (78) (68 3)
Other movements In joint ventures - - - - - - - - 11 11
Prior period adjustment {Note 2 Income
statement) - - - - - - 128 128 - 128
Prior period adjustment (Note 2 SOCI) - - - - - - 17 17 - 17
Ralance at 31 December 2012 (restated) 102 § 283 3211 169 2 (202) 160 25752 3,1922 86 4 3,278 6
Profit for the year - - - - - - 4376 437 6 09 4385
Revaluation movement - - - - - 47 - 4.7 - 4.7
Fair value adjustments - - - &5 190 - - 25.5 10 26.5
Deferred tax - - - (12) - (s3] 39) (5.2) - (52)
Pension actuarial losses - - - - - - 110 110 - 110
Dividends - - - - - - 01 (0.1) - (0.1)
Transfer between reserves - - - - 25 - (2 5) - - -
Non contralling shares acquired by
subsidiary - - - - - - - - 02) {0 2)
Redemption of preference shares (24 0) - B 24 0 - - (24 0) {24.0) - (24 Q)
Bonus i1ssue of shares 1251 - - - - - (125 1) - - -
Demerger of wholly owned subsidiary {125 1) - - - - - - {125.1) - {125.1)
Exchange - - (618) - - - - {61,8) (30) {64 8)
Other movements in joint ventures - - - - - - 03 03 07 10
Balance at 31 December 2013 785 283 2593 1985 13 206 2,868 6 3,455 1 858 3,5409

Other reserves comprise net interest rate hedging losses of £5 6m {2012 £1t Om) and capital redemption reserve of £204 1m (2012 £180 2m) On 12
December 2013, the Group demerged the ownership of a company to the shareholders at market value This was achieved by the issue of £125 Om of

new shares to the sharehalders, which were immedately cancelled on the transfer of the company outside of the Group
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38 Reconciliaticn of share capital and reserves continued

(b) Company
camai oo e R it iy
fm im im £m £m £m
At1January 2012 1390 283 1,047 0 1435 1750 11,5328
Recemptian of preference shares (3¢ 9) - - 365 (36 5) (36.5)
At 31 December 2012 1025 283 10470 1800 1385 1,496.3
Benus 1ssue of shares 1250 - (125 1) - - (01)
Demerger of wholly owned subsidiary (125 1) - - - - (125.1)
Dividends - - - - 51 251
Redemption of preference shares {24 0) - - 240 (24 0) (24.0)
At 31 December 2013 784 283 9219 2041 1396 1,3723

39 Notes to the consohdated statement of cash flows

(a) Reconciliation of profit from operations including share of profit from joint ventures to operating profit before changes in working capital

and provisions

2013 2012
£m fm
Operating actviiies
Profit from operations including share of profit from joint ventures 537.3 3920
Adjustments for
Depreciation 27 20
amartisation of capitalised lease incentives {0.5) 09
amaortisation of deferred lease premiums (1.3) 23)
Reccgnition of income from operating lease incentives 0.5 09
Net losses on other investments 177 09
Net gains on revatuatien and sale of investment property (354 7) (3127)
Share of profit from joint ventures (103 2) (585)
Impairment of goodwill 4.4 -
Operating profit before changes in working capital and provistons 1029 196
(b) Analysis of net debt
Other non cash 31 December 2013
1January 2013 Cash tHow mavements Exchange £m
£m £m £m £&m
Cash at bank and in hand 1155 327 - (7.6) 180 6
Shart-term depostts and short-ferm higuidity tnvestments 1229 2531 - - 3760
Cash and cash equivalents 2384 2858 - (76) 516 6
Borrowings due within gne year (49 5) 30) 312 20 (19 3)
Borrowings due after more than ane year (769 4) 559 (100 4} 74 {806 5)
Tatal borrowings (818 5) 529 (69 2) 94 (825 8)
Net debt {580 5) 3387 (69 2) 18 (309.2)

Other non-cash movements inclede net fair value adjustments on interest rate and currency swaps
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 Related party transactions

Grasvenor Group Limited 1s whally-owned by Trusts and members of the Grosvenor Family headed by the 6th Duke of Westminster During 2013 the

Group entered into the following transactions with the Grosvenor Trusts and members of the Grosvenor Family

2013 2012
£&m im
Rent and service charge income 0.3 Q3
Rent and service charge expenses (7.8) (15)
Development management fees 1.2 16
Management and admintstration fees 147 158
During 2013 the Group entered into the following transactions with other related parties
2013 2012
£m £m
Development and asset management fees received from jaint ventures 06 187
Other fees received from joint ventures 24 24
Other fees paitt 1o joint veniures {0.5) (08)
Insurance premiums payable to a relatec company {5.7) 137
At the end of the year the following amounts were due from/{to) related parties
2013 2012
£m £m
Amaounts due from joint ventures 611 50
Amounts due to joint ventures 00 (a1)
Amounts due to a relaled company (77 4) (02)

In 2013, £24 Om (2012 £36 5m) was paid by Grosvenor Estate Holdings, a subsidiary of the Company. to Shareholders of the Company in order to

redeem preference shares of the Company At the year end the Company had a balance recewvable from Grosvenor Estate Holdings of £13 8m (2012

£137 9m}

Total compensation pard to key management personnel during the year was £7 3m (2012 £50m), inctuding short-term benefits of £5 0m (2012 £4 2m),
post-employment benefits of £l (2012 £0 1m), long-term employee henefits of £2 3m (2012 £0 7m) and compensation for loss of office of £ml (2012

£l)
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm s length transactions
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT PRESENTED IN US DOLLARS

for the year ended at 31 December 2013

012
zt;:: (reslar;cm]
Total revenue 809.5 4213
Gross rental income 195.9 2129
Property outgomngs (72 4} {816)
Net rental income 1235 1313
Other income 52.8 614
Adminstrative expenses {154.9) (144 4)
Net losses on trading prcperties 1381 217}
Net {losses)/gains on other investments (27.8) 14
Net gains on revafuation and sale of investment property 557 1 5221
Impairmeni of goodwill (69) -
Skare of profit from joint ventures 162.1 528
Gain from operatlons including share of joint ventures 8440 8429
Dividend income - -
Financial ingome 9.1 S5
Financial expenses {66 8) 72
Fair value adjustments 99 24
Net financing costs (47.8) (59 3)
Profit before tax 796.2 5836
Current tax expense (87 6) (282)
Deferred tax expense (19 8) (46 2}
Profit for the year 688 8 509 2
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 687 4 516 3
Non-cantrofling interests 1.4 (71)
Profit for the year 688.8 509 2
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET PRESENTED IN US DOLLARS

as at 31 December 2013

Group
2013 2012 (restated)
m m

ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Investment property 5546 9 49649
Other property, plant and equipment 90 6 750
Investments tn subsidiartes - -
Investments In Joint ventures 1,596.8 16318
Gther financial assets 72.2 860
Intangible assets - 63
Deferred tax assets 96.6 1096
Total non-current assets 7,403.1 6,877 8
Current assets
Trading properties 206.9 4792
Trade and other recevables 250 4 3256
Other financial assets 179 159
Income tax receivable 5.8 91
Cash and cash equivalents B55 7 3875
Total current assets 1,336 7 1,217 3
TOTAL ASSETS 8,739 8 80951
LIABILITIES
Non-current labilities
Interest hearing loans and borrowings (1,335 8) (1,250 7)
Trade and other payables {96.1) (118 3}
Emgployee benefits {39.1) {55 6)
beferred tax habilities {1,016 4) {975 5)
Total non-current liabilities {2,487.4) {2,400 1}
Current liabllities
Overdrafts - -
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings {32.0) (80 5)
Trade and other payatles (283 5) {250 2)
Income tax payable (69.1) (28 8)
Provisions (30) {6 3)
Total current liabilities (387 6) (365 8)
TOTAL LIABILITIES {2,825 0) (2765 9)
NET ASSETS 5,864 8 5,329 2
Equity
Share capital 1300 166 6
Share premium 469 46Q
Reserves 794.5 7902
Retained earnings 4,751.3 4,186 1
shareholders’ funds 57227 51889
Non-controfing Interests 142.1 1403
TOTAL EQUITY 5,864 8 5,326 2




Grosvenor Group Limited
78 Finangial Statements for the year ending
31 December 2013

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT PRESENTED IN EUROS

for the year ended at 31 December 2013

2013 2012 (restatet)
m &m
Total revenue 608.6 3267
Gross rental income 147.2 1651
Property outgoings {54.4) (632
Net rental iIncome 92.8 1019
Other Income 397 476
Administrative expenses {116.4) mao)
Net losses on trading properties 103.8 {16 9)
Net (losses)/gains on ather investments (209) 11
Net gains on revaluation and sale of investment property 418 8 404 8
Impatrment of goodwill (5.2) -
Share of profit from Joint ventures 1219 720
Gain from operaticns incluging share of joint ventures 6345 498 5
Divtdend income - -
Financial income 68 74
Finarcial expenses (501) {55 2)
Fair value adjustments 74 18
Net financing costs (35.9) {46 0)
Profit before tax 598.6 4525
Current tax expense (65.9) 21 %)
Deferred tax expense {14.9) (35 B}
Profit for the year 517 8 354 8
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 516 7 4003
Non controfling Interests L1 {55)

Profit for the year 517 8 394 8
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET PRESENTED IN EUROS

as at 31 December 2013

Group
2002 2012 (restated)
o &m

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment property 4,025.5 3,7661
Other property plant and equipment 65.7 555
investments in subsidiaries - -
tnvestments in Joint ventures 1,158.9 1,237 8
Other financial assets 52.4 652
Intangible assets - 49
Deferred tax assets 70.1 831
Total non-turrent assets 5,372 6 5,212 0
Current assets
Trading properties 150.1 3635
Trade and other receivables 1817 2470
Other finanoal assets 13.0 121
Income tax receivable 4.2 &9
Cash and Cash equivalents 6210 2939
Total current assets 9700 92314
TOTAL ASSETS 6,342.6 61402
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabiiities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (969 4) (9487)
Trade and ather payables 69 7) {89 8)
Employee benefits (28.4) {42 2)
Deferred tax liabinities (732.7) (739 9)
Total non-current l:abitities (1,805 2) (1,820 6)
Current Habilities
Dverdrafts _ _
Interest-bearing lcans and borrowings (23.2) {610)
Trade and other payables (205.7) {189 B)
Income tax payable (50 1) (21 B)
Provisions {2.2) (4 8)
Total current liabihties (281.2) (277 4)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (2,086.4) (2,098 Q)
NET ASSEYS 4,256.2 4,042 4
Equity
Share capital 64.4 126 4
Share premium 340 346
Reserves 576.6 599 4
Retained earnings 3,448 1 3,1753
Shareholders’ funds 41531 39360
Non-cantrolling interests 103.1 106 4
TOTAL EQUITY 4,256.2 4,042 4
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TEN-YEAR SUMMARY

Income statement

2012 {restates)
&m

2004 £m 2005 £m 2006 £m 2007 £m 2008 Em 2009 £m 000Em 2011 £m 2013 £m
Net rental income 513 509 652 614 683 874 37 B9 g28 78.6
Qther income 104 299 52% 457 370 351 540 407 387 33.6
Administrative expenses 467 (533) (75 8) (815) (827 (84 5) (86 2) {89 8) (51 0) (98 6)
Net gains/{losses) on trading properties 96 {73) (176 6) (35 4) {106 6) (14) (57) (125) (137) 87.9
Net gains/(losses) on other investments 229 - 03 126 {120) (12 8) (15) 71 09 (177
Net gains/({losses) on revaluation and sale
of Investment properties 1988 246 8 5187 4139 (2677 (876) 2524 324 4 3290 3347
Impairment of goodwill - (33) 02) - - - - 7 - (4 4)
Share of profit/{ioss) from joint ventures 1238 121 6 1450 1200 (209 7) (134 49) 1037 250 585 103.2
Profit/{loss) before net financing
costs and tax 3701 3853 5255 5367 (5734) (198 2) 430 4 366 ¢ 405 2 537.3
Net financing costs (280) 17 2) (20 8) (127 (205) (37 6) (35 &) (519} (37 4) {30.4)
Profit/(loss) before tax 3421 3681 5087 524 0 {593 9) (235 8) 394 8 3150 3678 506.9
Revenue profit 435 46 6 (107 9) 734 (76 N 622 642 808 845 175.1
Balance sheet
2012 [restated)
2004 £m 2005 £m 2006 £m 2007 ¢m 2008 £m 2009 £m 2010Em 2011 £m £m 2013 £m
Total property assets inclugding share
of jaint ventures 32373 37277 45924 58633 61728 52219 54600 58396 58256 58389
investment property 18091 2007 4 23500 29216 27858 24751 2559 28127 3,054 4 3,349 0
Investment in jotnt ventures 654 & 819 4 10501 11560 10933 859 6 1,0633 1,074 8 1003 % 964.1
Other financial assets 583 710 500 55 4 466 387 426 369 529 43.6
Other non-current assets 1001 1327 1138 124 6 1338 1334 144 4 1481 1200 113.0
26621 30305 35639 42576 40565 33108 3,776 2 40725 4,731 2 4,469 7
Trading properties 441 345 487 1471 164 2 1423 1387 245 2 2948 1249
Cash and cash equivalents 264 2 3855 455 4 3236 915 505 2 269 4 2378 238 4 516.6
Other net current (liabihties)/assets 14 (34 2) 427 (287) 977 (223) 545 313 402 (49 2)
3097 3858 S46 8 4420 3134 625 2 45826 5140 5734 5923
Borrowmngs (including current) {614 5} (575 4) (659 5) (671 4) (785 9} (775 4) {1387 (BOS 5) (818 9) (825 8)
Deferred tax (317 9} {450 6) (555 2) {604 4) (519 3) (4315) (522 1) (576 4) (600 1) (613.7)
Other non-current habihties (1301) (203 8) (329 2) (360 3) (2312) {185 8} (2021) (2415) (107 0) (81 6)
(10625) (1,2298) (15439 (L6361} (15364) (13927 (14629 (1,6234; (1,5260) (L,5211)
Net Assets 19093 2186 5 25668 30635 28365 25433 27759 29631 32786 3,540.9
Share capital and share premium 2139 2339 2339 2299 2299 068 1632 1673 1308 106 8
Reserves 1,561 4 18577 21840 26585 24204 20800 2,4561 26880 30614 3,348.3
Shareholders’ funds 1,795 3 2,0916 24179 2,888 4 2,650 3 2,386 8 26493 2,8553 3,192 2 3,455.1
Non-controlling interast 114 0 sS4 9 148G 1791 1862 1569 126 6 107 8 86 4 85.8
Total equity 15093 21865 25668 30635 28365 25433 27159 29631 327186 3,540.9

International Financial Reporting Standards were adopted with effect from 1 January 2004
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GLOSSARY

Assets under management
The totat investment in property assets managed by the Group, including
the future costs of committed developments

Co-Investment
Where Grosvenor Invests equity in josnt venture or fund vehicles alongside
third parties

Currency
Financial information 1s presented 1n Sterling.

Develepment exposure

Grosvenor's share of develepment properties, including its share of the
future development commitment, as a percentage of property assets
including the future development commitment

Development pipeline
The development programme, including proposed projects that are not
yet committed but are likely to proceed

Development property
A property that is being developed for future use as an investment
property

ERYV (Estimated Rental value)

The estimated market rental value of the total lettable space in a
property, calculated by the Group s valuers This will usually be different
from the rent being paid

Finance lease
A lease that transfers substantialty all the risks and rewards of ownership
from the lessor to the lessee

Financial capacity
wholly-owned unrestricted cash and undrawn commutted facihties

Future development commitment
The expected costs to complete the development programme to which we
are committed

Gearing
Total shori- and long-term borrowings, incluthng bank overdrafts less
cash and cash deposits, as a percentage of Shareholders’ funds

Gross rental income
Total income from rents from the Group s properties

Ground-rented

Property where the freeholder grants a long lease to the tenant, usually
in exchange for an up-front premium (for the major part of the value) and
a lower ground rent payment for the duration of the lease

Group
Grosvenor Group Limited and its subsidiary undertakings

Head lease
The lease for an investment property under which the Group Is & lessee

Holding Company
Grosvenor Group Limited

IFRS
International Financial Reporting Standard(s)

Indirect investments
Proprietary investments managed by Grosvenor Fund Management or
third-party managers

Interest rate swap

A contractual agreement with a counterparty (usually a bank) to exchange
an interest oblrgation for an atternative interest obligation for a
predetermined period of time {usually used to convert floating rate
interest abligation to fixed rate obligations)

Investment property
A property that is held for the purpgses of earning rental income or for
capital appreciation or both

Joint venture
An entity in which the Group invests and which i jointly controls with the
other Investors

London estate
Grosvenor s portfolio of office, retail and residential properties in the
Mayfair and Belgravia areas of London’s West End

Mark to market
An accounting adjustment to adjust the book vatue of an asset or liabihty
10 1ts market value

Market value

Market value 15 the amount for which an interest in an asset could be
exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm s length
transaction For investment properties, it 1s determined by independent
external valuers
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GLOSSARY

82

Mezzanine lending
Lending to property developers that 1s subordinated to senior lending in
return for a profit share in the completed development

Operating Companies
Grosvenor’s reglonal investment and development businesses and
Grosvenor Fund Management

Passing rent
The annual rental income receivable, which may be more or less than the
ERV

Performance fees
Fees that are payable In the event that the performance of the underlying
Investrment exceeds a pregetermined benchmark

Property assets

Investments in property and praperty-related instruments - comprises
investment groperties, development properties, trading properties,
mezzanine toans and equity investments in property ccmpanies

Property derivative
Financial instruments whose price 1s gerived by reference to a property
returns index

Proportional
The total of the Group’s wholly-owned and its share of jointly owned
property assets or net debt as accounted for on an IFRS hasis

Proprietary
Relating to Grosvenor s share of investments in property assets
Proprietary assets are both directly and indtrectly owned

Resilience
The extent to which market values of property assets, an a proportional
basts, can fall before Group financial covenanis are breached

Revenue profit

Profit before tax, excluding profits on the sale of investment properties,
gains or losses on other non-current investments, revaluation
movemenis, major refurbishment costs and derivative fair value
adiustments See also Note 4 to the financral statements

Reversionary yield

The anticipated yield to which running yield wili rise (or fall} once the rent
reaches ERV, calculated as ERV as a percentage of the value of
investment properties

Running yield
Passing rent as a percentage of the value of investment properties

Third-party
The non-Grosvenor share of investments managed by Grosvenor

Total return

Totai return on property assets is revenue profit before financial expenses
but after major refurbishments, plus the net gain on revaluation and sale
of investment properties and other investments and including fair vatue
adjustments and exchange movements recognised in reserves, as a
percantage of average property assets (before current year revaluations)
and cash Jaint ventures and asscoiates are treated proportionally for the
purposes of this calculation

Trading property
Property held as a current asset in the balance sheet that s being
developed with a view to subsequent resale



